
 
 

Mr S Hearse 
Chief Executive 

Torridge District Council 

Riverbank House 
Bideford 

Devon 
EX39 2QG 

 
Tel : Bideford (01237) 428700 

 

 

 

 
Date: 20 January 2023 

 

MEETING OF COMMUNITY & RESOURCES  
COMMITTEE 

On: Monday 30 January 2023 At: 10.00 am 

Venue: Town Hall - Bridge Street, Bideford, EX39 2HS 

 
NOTICE OF MEETING 

 

The meeting will be able to watch through the Councils YouTube Channel 
https://tinyurl.com/TorridgeYouTube 

 
 

To: Councillor R Hicks (Chair) 
Councillor A Dart (Vice-Chair) 

Councillors: D Brenton, C Bright, D Bushby, P Christie, C Hodson, D Hurley, 
K James, N Laws, R Lock and S Newton 

 
Members are requested to turn off their mobile phones for the duration of the meeting 

 

AGENDA 
PART I - (OPEN SESSION) 

1.   Apologies for Absence  

 To receive apologies for absence from the meeting. 
 

2.   Public Contributions  

 Public contributions in accordance with the current scheme.  .(The deadline for 
registering  to speak is by 2pm Thursday 26 January 2023. To register please email 

dem.services@torridge.gov.uk). 
 

3.   Declarations of Interest  

 Members with interests to declare should refer to the Agenda item and describe the 

nature of their interest when the item is being considered. 
 

4.   Agreement of Agenda between Parts I and II  

https://tinyurl.com/TorridgeYouTube
mailto:dem.services@torridge.gov.uk


 
 

 

5.   Urgent Matters of information to be brought forward with the permission of the 

Chair and the Committee  

6.   S106 Monitoring Fees (Pages 3 - 10) 

 To receive the report of the Planning Manager 
 

7.   Fees and Charges (Pages 11 - 32) 

 To receive the report of the Section 151 Officer 
 

8.   The Plough  

 Report of the Finance Manager to follow 
 

9.   Budget 2023 - 24, Medium Term Financial Strategy 2023/24 - 2027/28 (Pages 33 - 

55) 

 To receive the report of the S151 Officer 
 

10.   Capital Programme 2023/24 to 2027/28 (Pages 56 - 64) 

 To receive the report of the Deputy S151 Officer 
 

11.   Exclusion of the Public  

 The Chair to move: 
 
That the public be excluded from the remainder of the meeting because of the likely 

disclosure of exempt information by virtue of paragraph of Part I and paragraph 10 of 
Part 2 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972. 

 

12.   PART II (CLOSED SESSION)  

 There are no Part II items 
 

Meeting Organiser: Sandra Cawsey 
 

 



REPORT OF Planning Manager 

To:  Community and Resources Committee 

Subject: S106 Monitoring Fees 

Date:  30th January 2023     Reference: 

 

PURPOSE OF REPORT: To consider a proposal for the introduction of Section 

106 Monitoring Fees. 

 

1. INTRODUCTION 

Section 106 (S106) Agreements are formal Deeds made pursuant to Section 106 of 

the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (“the Act”) to secure planning obligations 
which are required in order to make a proposed development acceptable in planning 

terms. The idea is that the planning obligations mitigate the impact of a proposed 
development.  
 

Section 106 of the Act states that a planning obligation can:  

 Restrict development and/or use of land;  

 Require specified activities or operations to be carried out on or over land;  

 Require land to be used in a specific way; or  

 Require a sum(s) to be paid to the local authority.  
 

Mostly, S106 agreements are used to secure funding for, or the direct provision of, 

new or improved infrastructure made necessary by new development. This can 

include affordable housing, public open space, built facilities and biodiversity net 

gain.  

Tests on the use of S106 planning obligations are set out in the Community 
Infrastructure Levy (CIL) Regulations 2010 (as amended). 

  
The introduction of the new regulations in September 2019 confirmed that a local 

planning authority may lawfully include a monitoring fee as a planning obligation if it 

is fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the development and does not 

exceed the local authority's estimate of its cost of monitoring the development over 

the lifetime of the related planning obligations. 

2. REPORT 

In 2019 there was an amendment to the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) 

Regulations 2010, which included a provision entitling local planning authorities to 

charge a monitoring fee for the oversight of (monitoring and reporting on) compliance 

of s106 obligations. The regulations state such a fee has to be fair and reasonable 

based on the local planning authority’s estimates of the actual costs of monitoring. 

To date, Torridge District Council has never introduced such a monitoring fee.  

Page 3

Agenda Item 6



The regulations also introduced a requirement for councils to publish "infrastructure 

funding statements". These statements will replace Regulation 123 lists and should 

include details of how much money has been raised through developer contributions 

and how it has been spent. Statements must be published on local authority 

websites at least once a year. 

Given the above permissive legislative framework, and the importance of effective 

securing of obligations to mitigate the impacts of development, it is considered 

reasonable to introduce a monitoring fee to cover the cost of officer time to monitor 

compliance and delivery of S106 obligations together with their reporting.  

It is prudent for the setting of any monitoring fees to incorporate a benchmarking 

exercise in order to align any future fee schedule with other neighbouring authorities 

within Devon. The following table shows the results of an online investigation: 

Table 1: S106 Monitoring Fees charged by local authorities across Devon 

 

Local Authority S106 monitoring fees charged 

East Devon Council No information published 

Exeter City Council No information published 

Mid Devon Council Charges are based on the full cost 
recovery rate for officers involved in 
the S106 process.   The charges 

reflect the officer time involved in the 
recording, monitoring and reporting 
on planning obligations.   

 
The fee bands are based on the 

number and type of obligations 
necessary to make a development 
acceptable, in accordance with the 

Mid Devon Local Plan 2013 – 2033, 
dependant on the type and scale of 

the development proposed. 

North Devon Council During the financial year 2020/21, 
the Council received £6,420 and 

during the financial year 2019/20, 
the Council received £4,440 through 
planning obligations, which has been 

spent during the year on monitoring 
the delivery of requirements set out 

within all planning obligations  
 

South Hams District Council £667 per trigger point within the 
agreement/undertaking for a 

payment to be made or other action 
to be taken by the developer  

 

Teignbridge District Council No information published  

Page 4



West Devon Borough Council The Council generally exercises the 
right to charge S106 monitoring 
fees. These have historically been 

levied at a rate of 5% of the total 
value of the financial contribution 

that the Council receives. More 
recent S106 agreements have fixed 
monitoring fees that are in addition 

to the financial contributions 
received by the Council  

 

The findings of this exercise were inconclusive, and it is therefore not possible to 

consider benchmarking findings within any proposed new fee structure. However, 

the model used by Mid Devon Council is considered the most robust and in line with 

the requirement for any such fee to be fair and reasonable and based on the actual 

costs of monitoring.  

It is therefore proposed that the fee basis for the proposed new S106 monitoring 

charges be based on the full cost recovery rate for officers involved in the S106 

process.   The proposed charges, set out at Appendix 1, reflect the officer time 

involved in the recording, monitoring and reporting on planning obligations.  Such 

tasks include, but not exclusively: 

 Recording the details of the Section 106 agreement on an IT system; 
including all clauses, contributions and trigger points; 

 Written approval of schemes as required by the legal obligation; 
 Monitoring the progress of the development to identify when triggers 

have been met and when obligations are due to be paid; 

 Undertaking site visits as required; 
 Invoicing for financial contributions, including calculating indexation 

uplift and applying interest as per the terms of the legal agreement if 
the contribution is overdue; 

 Ensuring compliance with the obligations contained within the legal 

agreement; 
 Recording financial transactions for the purposes of reporting on 

income and expenditure of developer contributions; 
 Managing the process of allocating and spending developer 

contributions in accordance with the terms of the legal agreement; 

 Monitoring long-term compliance with in perpetuity clauses; and 
 Publishing detailed information on financial contributions within the 

Annual Infrastructure Funding Statement; the S106 Report 

In calculating an appropriate fee, and to ensure the Council remains compliant with 
the relevant legislation, a comprehensive account of the actual cost to the Council of 
monitoring S106 planning obligations has been drafted and a fee schedule based on 

the findings is proposed (Appendix 1).  
 

The process involved breaking down the act of monitoring (including reporting on) a 
S106 planning obligation into the specific functions undertaken by the Council in 

Page 5



ensuring the compliance with those obligations. For each function a process note 
was written identifying the tasks that needed carrying out to fulfil a particular function. 

The process note includes the time taken (in whole hours) by the officer to complete 
the whole process. Where actual timings are not available an estimate of the 

maximum time a process should take has been inserted.  
 
Each function has been assigned a pay grading based on the earnings of an officer 

undertaking that function. The proposed fees are calculated using the current 

relevant hourly rates with the grading taken as at the top of the pay scale including 

full on-costs. A cost has then been assigned to each separate function by multiplying 

the function cost (in GBP) by the time taken (in hours).  

A decision has been taken to base the proposed fee charging schedule on the 

number of dwellings contained within a planning application. This eliminates the 

need for officers to calculate a bespoke fee for each S106 agreement by referring to 

a simple look-up table thus ensuring consistency in how S106 monitoring fees are 

charged.  

The proposed charging schedule has been broken down into five bands, A to E (see 

Appendix 1). Each band is based on the type and number of obligations that are 

likely to be requested for the scale of development as set out in the North Devon and 

Torridge Local Plan 2018-2031.  The proposed charging structure has been 

designed in such a way as to be completely transparent and straightforward to 

update.  

Monitoring fees would be secured by way of contractual covenant in the S106 

agreement itself in addition to the legal charge for drafting and checking the 

obligation. Fees would be payable at the same time as any legal costs or on the 

execution of the legal agreement. 

Appendix 2 contains a summary of S106 monitoring process and how the Council’s 

IT system for planning, Uniform, can be used to facilitate accurate monitoring. 

Uniform has been upgraded to enable proper use of its S106 monitoring function.  

By way of example of the likely fee income that may be generated should Members 

resolve to introduce the proposed fees, had such a charging structure already been 

introduced, the Council could have recouped in the region of £100,000 in monitoring 

costs across 2021 and 2022. 

The looking forward section in the Budget 23/24 and MTFS report, also reported to 

this committee includes income of £75,000 per year, which reflects the reduced 

budgeted level of planning income.  

3. IMPLICATIONS 

Legal Implications:  

The proposed fee charging process takes into consideration relevant legislation, 
namely the Community Infrastructure Levy (Amendment) (England) (No. 2) 
Regulations 2019; Fees for monitoring planning obligations, and the Local 

Government Act 2003, Section 93; Power to charge for discretionary services.  
 

Page 6



The Government is currently consulting on reforms to national planning policy, which 
includes proposals for a new Infrastructure Levy. Such a Levy may supersede 

Section 106 obligations; however, it is considered that there will still be a Council 
monitoring requirement. 

 

Financial Implications:  
The accurate charging of monitoring fees will assist in recovering the costs 

associated with monitoring and reporting on planning obligations (also known as 
S106 agreements).  

 
Human Resources Implications: 
The monitoring role is already carried out to a degree however the introduction of 

monitoring fees allows for this function to be properly resourced. It will be necessary 
to ensure roles are properly defined to guarantee efficient monitoring.    
 

Sustainability/Biodiversity Implications: 
No known issues identified for this report other than recognition that biodiversity net 

gain measures are secured via S106 Agreements so an improved monitoring 
function would have a positive impact.  

 
Equality / Diversity: 
No known issues identified for this report. 

 
Risk Management:  

Ensuring discretionary fees associated with the monitoring of s106 agreements are 
kept up to date mitigates against the cost of development being borne by the tax-
payer and also ensures the Council is not charging for profit, thus maintaining 

compliance with the relevant legislation.  
 

Compliance with Policies and Strategies:  
The Planning Service is a statutory service, the effective operation of which is central 
to the delivery of Strategic Plan priorities around the themes of local economy; 

communities, health and housing; and environment.  
 

Data Protection (GDPR) Implications: 
No known GDPR implications.  
 

Climate Change:  
No known issues identified for this report. 

 
Lead Member Views: 
Date of Consultation – 19th January 

 
Lead Member for Planning – Cllr Pete Watson 

 
The effective monitoring of Section 106 Agreements is incredibly important to ensure 
that the planning obligations secured at the time of a decision, in order to make a 

development acceptable, are realised. Given the legislative ability to secure a 
monitoring fee exists, it seems entirely appropriate for the Council to seek to recoup 

Page 7



its costs. This will greatly assist in ensuring that monitoring is carried out robustly for 
the wider benefit of our communities.  

 

4. RECOMMENDATION 

That the Community and Resources Committee approves the introduction of a new 

charging mechanism for S106 monitoring, in line with the fees set out at Appendix 1, 
and to be implemented with effect from 1st April 2023. 

 
SUPPORTING INFORMATION 

Consultations: Date of Consultation: 19th January 2023 

  Officers Consulted -  

 Steve Hearse, Chief Executive  

Staci Dorey, Head of Legal, Governance and Monitoring  

Sean Kearney, Head of Communities and Place  
David Heyes, Finance Manager 

 

Contact Officer: Helen Smith, Planning Manager 

Background Papers: 

a. Community Infrastructure Levy (Amendment) (England) (No. 2) Regulations 

2019 

 

b. Local Government Act 2003, Section 93 

 

Appendix 1: Proposed Charging Schedule 

Appendix 2: Example Section 106 Monitoring Process 

Page 8



Appendix 1 - Proposed S106 Monitoring Fees – Charging Schedule 

BAND DEVELOPMENT TYPE / SIZE MONITORING FEE 
A RESIDENTIAL Rural Sites 

 
1-5 dwellings 
 
RESIDENTIAL Urban Sites 
Bideford, Northam/Westward 
Ho!/Appledore, Holsworthy, 
Great Torrington 
 
1-10 dwellings 

£1,187 

B RESIDENTIAL Rural Sites 
 
6-19 dwellings 
 
RESIDENTIAL Urban Sites 
Bideford, Northam/Westward 
Ho!/Appledore, Holsworthy, 
Great Torrington 

 
11-19 dwellings 

£2,798 

C ALL RESIDENTIAL SITES 
 
20 – 49 dwellings 

£4,515 

D ALL RESIDENTIAL SITES 
 
50 – 199 dwellings 

£6,190 

E ALL RESIDENTIAL SITES 
 
200 or more dwellings 

£8,925 

 

Page 9



Appendix 2 - Section 106 Monitoring Process 
 
1.0 SETTING UP A MONITORING RECORD IN UNIFORM WHEN THE S106 AGREEMENT IS RECEIVED 
FROM LEGAL 

 
1.1 CREATE A NEW RECORD IN THE DCM MODULE; COPY ACROSS THE INFORMATION FROM 
THE PLANNING APPLICATION AND CHECK FOR ANY RELATED CASES; UPDATE STATUS, LEGAL 
REFERENCE, DATES AND COMMENTS 
1.2 UPDATE THE CONDITIONS/CLAUSES TAB WITH ONE LINE FOR EVERY OBLIGATION 
1.3 UPDATE THE CONTRIBUTIONS TAB BY CREATING A FINANCIAL RECORD TEMPLATE FOR 
EACH OF THE FINANCIAL CONTRIBUTIONS DUE UNDER THE S106 
1.4 UPDATE THE TASKS TAB WITH MONITORING TASKS FOR EVERY OBLIGATION; TO 
INCLUDE ALL TRIGGERS, IN-PERPETUITY CLAUSES AND SPEND-BY CRITERIA 
1.5 CREATE A SEPARATE MONITORING RECORD UNDER THE INSPECTIONS TAB TO GENERATE 
CALENDAR REMINDERS FOR MONITORING CHECKS, SPEND BY DATES, ETC 
1.6 UPLOAD THE PLANNING REFERENCE ONTO THE S106 FINANCIAL MASTER UNDER ALL 
RELEVANT TABS (ONE LINE PER CONTRIBUTION/TRIGGER POINT) 
1.7 UPLOAD THE PLANNING REFERENCE ONTO THE S106 FINANCIAL MASTER 
COMMENCEMENT CHECKING SHEET IF THE AGREEMENT CONTAINS ANY ON 
COMMENCEMENT TRIGGERS 
1.8 CREATE A NEW MONITORING RECORD IN THE OCCUPATION MONITORING SPREADSHEET 
 
AVERAGE TIME SPEND 2 TO 3 HOURS. AGREEMENTS WITH A LOT MORE OBLIGATIONS CAN 
TAKE A LOT LONGER KEEP GOING BACK AND FORTH THROUGH A SUBSTANTIAL LEGAL 
AGREEMENT - SUGGEST A MULTIPLIER BASED ON THE NO. OF HEADS OF TERMS 

 
2.0 QUARTERLY RECORD MANAGEMENT AND ACCOUNT RECONCILIATION 
 
3.0 QUARTERLY WEBSITE UPDATES AND RISK REPORTS TO MANAGEMENT 
 
4.0 ANNUAL S106 REPORT COMPILATION, CHECKING AND PUBLICATION BY 31ST DECEMEBER EACH 
YEAR FOR THE PREVIOUS FINANCIAL YEAR (STATUTORY REQUIREMENT) 
 

(UP TO 10 DAYS ANNUALLY 7.5 * 10 = 75 HOURS/25 AGREEMENTS PER ANNUM = 3 HOURS PER 
AGREEMENT FOR ONE YEAR/9 HOURS FOR A THREE-YEAR PERIOD) 

 

Page 10



 
  

Agenda Item  

REPORT OF Section 151 Officer 

To: Community and Resources Committee 

Subject: Miscellaneous Fees & Charges 

Date: 30th January 2023 Reference:  

 
 
 
PURPOSE OF REPORT:  

To review the level of miscellaneous fees and charges. 

 
1. INTRODUCTION 

 
Fees and charges contribute towards the cost of providing services. The Medium Term 
Financial Strategy (MTFS) assumes that charges will rise across income budgets where 
appropriate. The amount of income raised will affect the level of expenditure savings 
required to deliver a balanced budget. Managers have reviewed the current charges and 
suggested charges from 1 April 2023. 
 

2. REPORT 
 
This Council receives circa £7.2m per annum from fees and charges for services. The 
income received from Fees & Charges reduces the cost of services to be met from council 
tax.  
 
The level of fee set should be based on criteria such as; 

 Inflation 
 To recover costs 
 To influence behaviour 
 The ability to pay 
 What the market will bear 
 Whether or not to compete with the private sector 

 
Fees may be set and or, based on more than one criterion. 

 
Some fees are not subject to approval, as they are prescribed by statute (e.g. Planning 
Applications), but others can be set at the discretion of the Council (e.g. Beach Huts).  
 
Some discretionary charges can only represent a reclamation of costs (e.g. Street Naming 
and Numbering), or the service as a whole cannot be making a profit (e.g. Land Charges), 
additionally some charges, such as certain licenses and Fixed Penalty Notices are 
discretionary but may have a statutory minimum and maximum level. 
 
Included within the appendix are discretionary fee’s which require approval for 2023/24. The 
full summarised Fees and Charges, including statutory charges and those subject to 
separate approval arrangements are available at  
www.torridge.gov.uk/article/20057/Fees-Charges 
 
Brief notes have been included on each page outlining the main drivers behind any changes 
(or lack thereof). Unsurprisingly, Inflationary pressures have been a significant factor, with 
CPI hitting 11.1% in October 22 compared with 4.2% at the same period last year.  

 

Page 11

Agenda Item 7

http://www.torridge.gov.uk/article/20057/Fees-Charges


 
  

 
3. IMPLICATIONS 

 
Legal Implications 
 
Some fees are set by statute or have limitations on how they can be determined and this has 
been reflected in the proposed fees and charges. 
 
Financial Implications 
 
The additional income raised from any increase in fees and charges counts towards the 
savings required to balance the 2023/24 budget.  
 
Human Resources Implications 
 
There are no specific human resources implications. 
 
Sustainability/Biodiversity Implications 
 
There are no specific sustainability/biodiversity implications. 
 
Equality/Diversity 
 
Some fees and charges have concessionary rates. The committee should consider the 
impact that the charges may have.  
 
Risk Management 
 
In proposing fees and charges regard has been paid to the impact of the fee level.  
 
Compliance with Policies and Strategies 
 
Fees and charges are set within current policies. 
 
Data Protection (GDPR) Implications 
There are no GDPR implications regarding the publication of the Fees and Charges. The 
relevant providers will be responsible for ensuring that supplies of goods and services are 
made in compliance with GDPR.  
 
Ward Member and Leader Member Views 
 
Date of Consultation – 18/01/2023 
 
Councillor Hodson –  
 
The annual setting of fees and charges is a key component of the Councils budget setting 
process. Care is taken to ensure charges are only increased in line with either 
statutory control and/or with regard to the criteria listed in Section 2.  I am happy that where 
changes have taken place they appear fair and justified and I support this report. 
 

4. CONCLUSIONS 

 
The MTFS assumes that there will be an increase in income from fees and charges. 
Managers have considered the impact on their services in proposing fees and charges for 
the next financial year. 
 

Page 12



 
  

 
5. RECOMMENDATION 

 
That the committee consider and agree charges for services to be effective from 1 April 
2023. 
 
 

SUPPORTING INFORMATION 

 
 Consultations: Date of Consultation – 17/01/2023 

Officers Consulted: -   
Chief Executive 
Section 151 Officer 
Senior Solicitor 
Head of Communities and Place 
Senior and Operational Managers for the relevant service 
 

 Contact Officer: Gwydion Batten – Senior Collection Fund Accountant. 

 Background Papers: Fees and charges information held in the Accountancy Section at 
Riverbank House. 

 
 

Page 13



   Torridge District Council

    Fees and Charges 2023/24

Page 1

Page 14



Fee & Charge

Culture & Leisure

Cemeteries

Planning

Building Control

Licensing

Environmental Health & Public Protection

Car Parks

Northam Burrows

Harbour / Pilotage / Mooring Charges

Housing

Electoral Registration

Land Charges

Room Hire

Fishdock

Waste Management Services

Customer Services

Council Tax/Business Rates

General

Payroll

Legal

Environmental Information 

Regulations

VAT Status Rate

(S) - Standard 20%

 (E) - Exempt N/A

(N) - Non-Business N/A

(Z) - Zero Rated 0%

Page Number

18

14

17

Contents Page

13

3

4

5

5

6 - 9

10 - 12

12

12

15

15 - 16

18

18

19

18

19

19

19

Page 2

Page 15



 Torridge District Council -  Fees & Charges 2023/24

   Note: Amounts listed include VAT (if applicable) 2022/23 2023/24 VAT Status

Culture and Leisure

Sport Facilities (per game)

£49.00 £53.00 S

£49.00 £53.00 S

£56.00 £60.00 S

£19.00 £20.50 S

£11.50 £12.50 E

£17.00 £18.50 S

Note: For block bookings of a minimum of 10 with no more than a two-week gap between each date and paid in advance,

then charges may be exempt from VAT. Please contact Leisure Services for more information.

The Council also owns 3 Leisure Centres across the District, in Northam, Holsworthy and Torrington. These are managed 

by Active Torridge Ltd. Please visit www.activetorridge.co.uk for further information

Land Licences

Admin Fee for all Licences £33.50 £50.00 S

Commercial Event (per day) - Prices on arrangement dependent on use & duration POA POA E

£61.00 £66.00 E

Damage Deposit Fee  - Prices on arrangement dependent on use & duration POA POA N

Water and Electricity charge at events (per day) POA POA S

£100.00 £110.00 S

Garages

Garage Rentals (High View, Tuckers Park & West Appledore) POA POA S

Charities & not for profit organisations with commercial elements involved (per day)

Cricket Pavilion

Football Pitches

Rugby Outside Pitch

Cricket Grass Wicket

Cricket Artificial Wicket

Voluntary Wind, Waves & Water beach safety acknowledgement certificate

Standard Youth Hire

Page 3

Page 16

gwydion.batten
Text Box
NotePrices reviewed for inflation & related costsLand Licences officer time reviewed for Officer time recovery



 Torridge District Council -  Fees & Charges 2023/24

   Note: Amounts listed include VAT (if applicable) 2022/23 2023/24 VAT Status

Cemeteries 

TDC Resident Reduction on below fee's marked with asterisk* 50% 25%

Interment

Adult

£1,365.00 £1,485.00 E

£1,670.00 £1,814.00 E

£1,943.00 £2,110.00 E

Child 

Free Free E

Ashes

£315.00 £342.00 E

Free Free E

£163.00 £177.00 E

Interment at Weekend additional fee* £315.00 £342.00 E

Exclusive Rights of Burial - For 25 years

£1,103.00 £1,198.00 E

Free Free E

£1,103.00 £1,198.00 E

Renewal (Plot in use) £147.00 £160.00 E

£163.00 £177.00 E

NOTE: Pre-booking of grave plots at Northam and Torrington is no longer available due to a limited amount of remaining spaces.

Chapel Use / Services / Overnight Laying of Coffin additional fee* £242.00 £263.00 E

Erection of Headstone* £368.00 £400.00 E

Erection of Tablet / Vase* £131.00 £142.00 E

Additional Headstone Inscription* £76.00 £83.00 E

Search of Register £46.00 £50.00 E

Copy of Register Entry £46.00 £50.00 E

Memorial Benches

Concrete & timber seat £1,024.00 £1,112.00 S

Solid timber bench £735.00 £798.00 S

Additional plaque £81.00 £88.00 S

Refurbishment of existing 

bench £520.00 £565.00 S

Trees

Prices on Application. Approximately: £105.00 - 

£160.01

£114.00 - 

£174.00 N

Free standing plaque £98.00 £106.00 S

Renewal (Plot Un-used)*

Ashes*

Single*

Double*

Scattering*

Adult*

Child (under 16)

Triple*

Under 16

Adult*

Child (under 16)

Page 4

Page 17

gwydion.batten_1
Text Box
NoteReduction in Resident discount approved at Full CouncilPrices reviewed for inflationAverage 8% increase



 Torridge District Council -  Fees & Charges 2023/24

   Note: Amounts listed include VAT (if applicable) 2022/23 2023/24 VAT Status

Planning

A planning fees calculator, information on how to apply and a link to the Simplified Pre-Application guide is available online

Pre-Application Charges https://www.torridge.gov.uk/article/11074 S

Enforcement

     Written Confirmation of Compliance with Enforcement Notice N/A £120.00 N

     Request to Withdraw Notice N/A £120.00 N

     Written Advice - No further Action £25.00 £70.00 N

     High Hedges N/A £600.00 N

Building Control 

* Please contact the office on 01237 428724 who can give assistance and full fee information.

Demolition Notice Fee £165.00 £165.00 N

Building Control Documents

Copy of Building Regulation Approval/Completion Certificate £18.50 £20.00 S

Third party Land Sales (letter) £43.00 £45.00 S

NB: Any information requested for an Appeal by an applicant or agent is free of charge

Street Naming and Numbering

£50.00 £54.00 N

Confirmation of Address Letter £33.00 £36.00 N

New developments: 

- charge set for street naming £76.00 £83.00 N

with an additional fee for number of properties

per unit (1-10 properties) £13.00 £14.00 N

per unit (11-100 properties) £6.50 £7.00 N

per unit (101+ properties) £1.50 £1.60 N

Change of Property Name / Addition of Alias Name

Page 5

Page 18

gwydion.batten_2
Text Box
NoteEnforcement fees (excl. hedges) benchmarked with North Devon Council.High Hedges - estimate of officer timeOther fees increased with inflation - average 8%



 Torridge District Council -  Fees & Charges 2023/24

   Note: Amounts listed include VAT (if applicable) 2022/23 2023/24 VAT Status

Licensing

Application fees are payable at the time of making an application, and are not refundable if the application is subsequently refused

Grant fees do not have to be paid until the licence is ready to be issued - if paid earlier, this part of the fee will be refunded if the application is refused

Where both types of fee are payable in connection with a licence application type, it is up to the applicant as to whether they wish to make one payment

for the total fees at the time of application, or to pay both fees separately as their application progresses.

Business & Planning Act 2020

Pavement Licences £100.00 £100.00 N

Hypnotism Licence £50.00 £60.00 N

Gambling Act 2005

Betting and Gaming:

Premises licences

Bingo Club

£1,225.00 £1,225.00 N

£1,225.00 £1,225.00 N

£750.00 £750.00 N

Transfer £500.00 £500.00 N

Re-instatement £500.00 £500.00 N

Provisional Statement £1,175.00 £1,175.00 N

Application - Provisional Statement Holders £500.00 £500.00 N

Betting Premises (non-track)

£1,225.00 £1,225.00 N

£1,225.00 £1,225.00 N

£600.00 £600.00 N

Transfer £500.00 £500.00 N

Re-instatement £500.00 £500.00 N

Provisional Statement £1,175.00 £1,175.00 N

Application - Provisional Statement Holders £500.00 £500.00 N

Tracks

£1,225.00 £1,225.00 N

£1,225.00 £1,225.00 N

£750.00 £750.00 N

Transfer £500.00 £500.00 N

Re-instatement £500.00 £500.00 N

Provisional Statement £1,175.00 £1,175.00 N

Application - Provisional Statement Holders £500.00 £500.00 N

Family Entertainment Centre

£1,225.00 £1,225.00 N

£1,000.00 £1,000.00 N

£750.00 £750.00 N

Transfer £500.00 £500.00 N

Re-instatement £500.00 £500.00 N

Provisional Statement £1,175.00 £1,175.00 N

Application - Provisional Statement Holders £500.00 £500.00 N

Adult Gaming Centre

£1,225.00 £1,225.00 N

£1,000.00 £1,000.00 N

£750.00 £750.00 N

Transfer £500.00 £500.00 N

Re-instatement £500.00 £500.00 N

Provisional Statement £1,175.00 £1,175.00 N

Application - Provisional Statement Holders £500.00 £500.00 N

All Premises Licence Types

Duplicate Licence £25.00 £25.00 N

Change of Details £50.00 £50.00 N

Temporary Use Notice £50.00 £50.00 N

New Application

Variation

Annual Fee

New Application

New Application

Variation

Annual Fee

Annual Fee

New Application

Variation

Variation

Annual Fee

Annual Fee

New Application

Variation

Page 6

Page 19

gwydion.batten_3
Text Box
NoteFees Semi-Discretionary - capped maxCan only represent recovery of costs



 Torridge District Council -  Fees & Charges 2023/24

   Note: Amounts listed include VAT (if applicable) 2022/23 2023/24 VAT Status

Taxis and Private Hire

Application (includes £70 fee for demand survey) £160.00 £160.00 N

Grant (Plus Plate Deposit Below) £75.00 £80.00 N

Application £90.00 £90.00 N

£75.00 £80.00 N

Application £110.00 £115.00 N

£75.00 £80.00 N

Application £70.00 £80.00 N

£75.00 £80.00 N

Application £110.00 £115.00 N

£225.00 £240.00 N

Application £70.00 £80.00 N

£225.00 £240.00 N

Application £40.00 £45.00 N

£75.00 £80.00 N

Application £40.00 £45.00 N

£375.00 £400.00 N

£10.00 £10.00 N

£20.00 £20.00 N

£25.00 £26.00 N

Admin Fee - Licence Amendment / Cancellation £25.00 £26.00 N

£25.00 £26.00 N

£56.00 £56.00 N

£30.00 £30.00 N

£48.25 £48.25 N

£30.00 £35.00 N

Grant (Plus Plate Deposit Below)

Grant

Temporary Vehicle Licence per month Plus Charge for Replacement Licence Plate 

Grant

Grant

Private Hire Operators Licence - per vehicle (1 year)

HC/PH Hire Drivers Licence (3 year) - Grant

HC/PH Hire Drivers Licence (1 year) - Renewal

Grant

Grant

Replacement/duplicate HC/PH License or ID badge

Criminal Records Disclosure (DBS)

Replacement/duplicate licence plates

Transfer of Vehicle Licence (proprietor)

Transfer of Vehicle Licence (vehicle) + Charge for Licence 

Deposit for Licence Plate

Deposit for HC/PH Driver ID Badge

Private Hire Operators Licence - per vehicle (5 year)

HC/PH Hire Drivers Licence (3 year) - Renewal

Grant

Hackney Carriage Vehicle Licence (1 Year)

Private Hire Vehicle Licence (1 Year)

HC/PH Hire Drivers Licence (1 year) - Grant

Page 7

Page 20

gwydion.batten_4
Text Box
NoteFees reviewed for inflation and cost recoveryCan only represent recovery of costs



 Torridge District Council -  Fees & Charges 2023/24

   Note: Amounts listed include VAT (if applicable) 2022/23 2023/24 VAT Status

Animal Activity Licenses

Animal Boarding 

Application £145.00 £180.00 N

Grant £150.00 £150.00 N

Dog Day Care

Application £145.00 £180.00 N

Grant £150.00 £150.00 N

Selling Animals as Pets

Application £145.00 £180.00 N

Grant £150.00 £150.00 N

Home Boarding

Application £115.00 £135.00 N

Grant £150.00 £150.00 N

Keeping Animals for Exhibition

Application £115.00 £135.00 N

Grant £150.00 £150.00 N

Breeding of Dogs (Plus Vet Fees)

Application £155.00 £210.00 N

Grant £150.00 £150.00 N

Hiring of Horses (Plus Vet Fees)

Application £155.00 £210.00 N

Grant £150.00 £150.00 N

Fee for each additional activity

Maximum fee per activity £60.00 £65.00 N

Dangerous Wild Animals (Plus Vet Fees)

Application £215.00 £235.00 N

Grant - plus Vet fees £160.00 £175.00 N

Zoos (Plus Inspection Fee)

Application £265.00 £280.00 N

Grant - plus Vet fees £470.00 £510.00 N

Variation to license/Re-evaluation of rating (Plus Inspection Fees) £40.00 £45.00 N

Replacement/Duplicate Licence £10.00 £10.00 N

All Animal Welfare Licence Applications will be charged the Vets Fee if Required.

Page 8

Page 21

gwydion.batten_5
Text Box
NoteFees reviewed for inflation and cost recoveryCan only represent recovery of costs



 Torridge District Council -  Fees & Charges 2023/24

   Note: Amounts listed include VAT (if applicable) 2022/23 2023/24 VAT Status

Sundry Licences and Registration

Boat And Boatman's Licensing

Boat - Grant

Application £54.00 £56.00 N

Grant £60.00 £65.00 N

Boat - Renewal

Application £44.00 £46.00 N

Grant £60.00 £65.00 N

Boatmen - Grant

Application £74.00 £80.00 N

Grant £50.00 £55.00 N

Boatmen - Renewal

Application £34.00 £36.00 N

Grant £50.00 £55.00 N

Operator - Grant

Application £94.00 £100.00 N

Grant £60.00 £65.00 N

Operator - Renewal

Application £44.00 £50.00 N

Grant £60.00 £65.00 N

Replacement/Duplicate License/ID Badge £10.00 £10.00 N

Licensing of Sex Establishments

New - Application £300.00 £325.00 N

New - Grant £2,040.00 £2,200.00 N

Renewal - Application £190.00 £205.00 N

Renewal Grant £2,040.00 £2,200.00 N

Transfer/Variation £200.00 £225.00 N

Scrap Metal Dealers Licence

Site Licence

Application £65.00 £70.00 N

Grant £110.00 £120.00 N

Mobile Collector

Application £50.00 £55.00 N

Grant £75.00 £85.00 N

Replacement/Duplicate License/ID Badge £10.00 £10.00 N

Page 9

Page 22

gwydion.batten_6
Text Box
NoteFees reviewed for inflation and cost recoveryCan only represent recovery of costs



 Torridge District Council -  Fees & Charges 2023/24

   Note: Amounts listed include VAT (if applicable) 2022/23 2023/24 VAT Status

Environmental Health & Public Protection Charges

Food Safety

The Food Safety (Fishery products and Live Shellfish) (Hygiene) Amendment (No.2) Regulations 1999

Fishery Product Establishments (Euro per tonne to be converted to GBP) £0.50 £0.55 N

Export Certificates

£51.00 £55.00 N

£51.00 £55.00 N

Note: If inspection required per hour - min. 1 hour £34.00 £45.75 N

Re-inspection requests for Food Hygiene Rating Scheme £150.00 £163.00 N

Food Condemnation Certificate

£40.00 £45.75 N

Safer Food Better Business Catering Pack £8.00 £9.00 Z

Pack plus Postage £10.00 £11.00 Z

12 Month Diary Sheet Pack £3.50 £3.80 Z

Note that these are free from the FSA website

https://www.food.gov.uk/business-guidance/safer-food-better-business

Ear Piercing, Tattooing, Acupuncture or Electrolysis

£134.15 £145.00 N

£53.55 £58.00 N

£24.50 £27.00 N

Control of Stray Dogs 

Daily Kennelling charge (any part day charged at full day) £19.00 £22.00 N

Dog warden/ administration fee

   -   Dogs WITH current tag/ up to date microchip £53.60 £58.20 N

   -   Dogs WITHOUT current tag/ up to date microchip £76.36 £82.92 N

Vet fees (if applicable - charged at cost) Cost Cost N

Park Homes

New Park Home Site Licence (+ per pitch) £275.90 (+4.03) £299.6 (+4.38) N

Annual Fee (+ per pitch) £151.54 (+4.03) 164.57 (+4.38) N

Standard Licence Transfer or Amendment (no visit required) £122.31 £132.82 N

Significant Licence Amendment (additional fee) (+ per pitch) £78.51 (+4.03) £85.26 (+4.38) N

Deposit of Site Rules £56.77 £61.65 N

Fit and Proper Persons Checks £215.00 £215.00 N

Enforcement Charges (Determined on a case by case basis)

(See Park Homes Fees Policy for more details)

Premises

Premises registration

Personal Registration Certificate (Amendment)

Per hour plus food collection costs* (*direct recharge of 3rd party costs)

Person Registration Competency Check & Certificate

Food

Page 10

Page 23

gwydion.batten_7
Text Box
NoteFees reviewed for inflation and cost recoveryCan only represent recovery of costs



 Torridge District Council -  Fees & Charges 2023/24

   Note: Amounts listed include VAT (if applicable) 2022/23 2023/24 VAT Status

Community Protection Fixed Penalty Notice

Paid within 10 days £60.00 £60.00 N

Paid within 14 days £100.00 £100.00 N

Failure to Furnish Documentation (Waste Carriers Licence)

Paid within 10 days £180.00 £180.00 N

Paid within 14 days £300.00 £300.00 N

Failure to Produce Authority (Waste Carriers Licence)

Paid within 10 days £180.00 £180.00 N

Paid within 14 days £300.00 £300.00 N

Fly Tipping Fixed Penalty Notice

Paid within 10 days £250.00 £250.00 N

Paid within 14 days £400.00 £400.00 N

Household Waste Duty of Care Fixed Penalty Notice

Paid within 10 days £180.00 £180.00 N

Paid within 14 days £300.00 £300.00 N

Littering Fixed Penalty Notice

Paid within 10 days £100.00 £100.00 N

Paid within 14 days £150.00 £150.00 N

Littering From Vehicle - Fine

Paid within 14 days £100.00 £100.00 N

Paid within 28 days £150.00 £150.00 N

Public Space Protection Order Fixed Penalty Notice

Paid within 10 days £60.00 £60.00 N

Paid within 14 days £100.00 £100.00 N

Noise Pollution Control

£200.00 £200.00 N

Maximum 3 hours / See EIR Charges £25.00 £42.00 N

Sampling and Analysis of Private Water Supplies

Risk Assessment (incl. 'check sample' visit charge)* £245.00 £266.00 E

Sampling Visit* £85.00 £92.30 E

Investigation £100.00 £100.00 E

Granting an Authorisation £100.00 £100.00 E

Missed Appointments £10.90 £11.84 E

*Analysis will be charged at cost - please contact TDC for further information

Application for consent for the operation of loud speakers in the street

Contaminated Land search fee - per hour

Page 11

Page 24

gwydion.batten_8
Text Box
NoteFees reviewed for inflation and cost recoveryPenalties can only be set within defined Min-Max range. Currently at max so no scope for increase



 Torridge District Council -  Fees & Charges 2023/24

   Note: Amounts listed include VAT (if applicable) 2022/23 2023/24 VAT Status

Prescribed Processes under the Environmental Protection Act 1990

Environmental Permitting - Local Authority fees for Integrated Pollution Prevention Control (IPPC) are set nationally 

and are available on the Following Department of Environment Food and Rural Affairs (DEFRA) website

https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/environmental-permitting-resources-for-local-authorities#fees-and-charges

For further guidance contact the Environmental Protection Team on environmental.protection@torridge.gov.uk or 01237 428700

Public Health - National Assistance Burial administration £250.00 £250.00 E

Additional cost for property search £165.00 E

Additional fee's (including undertakers) charged at cost

Exhumations - attendance and monitoring £500.00 £500.00 E

Works in Default (various legislation): administrative charge Cost plus 10%Cost of works plus 10% S

Car Parks / Tolls

Business Permits (Monday to Saturday in all long stay car parks only - except Westward Ho! main car park)

Per month £42.00 £45.00 S

Penalty Charge Notices (Dependant on nature of contravention)

Base charge £50.00 £50.00 N

or £70.00 £70.00 N

Northam Burrows 

Daily Toll

Motorcycles (Day and Evening) - returning entry £2.00 £2.50 S

Mini bus/Car & Trailer (10 - 17 seats)  - Day - returning entry £7.00 £8.50 S

Car - Evening £2.00 £2.50 S

Coach/Mini bus & Trailer - Day - returning entry £10.00 £12.00 S

Season Ticket

Season Motorcycle ticket £30.00 £35.00 S

Duplicate/Replacement Season Ticket (incl. for change of details) £10.00 £12.00 S

Commercial Vehicles (per annum)

Coach/Bus £580.00 £695.00 S

Minibus/Trailer £460.00 £550.00 S

School Booking Fee £25.00 £30.00 S

Discounts for pre-arranged visits:

50% for organisations using the Burrows for educational use

50% for charities and youth clubs

50% for nursing homes

Commercial Rent of Land (per day) £35.00 £40.00 E

Commercial Rent of Land (per season) £230.00 £275.00 E

Hire of Function Room  (All participants must pay toll fees to enter the park)

Half Day £15.00 £20.00 S

Full Day £25.00 £35.00 S

Charge for Public Liability insurance (Registered Charity Only) £7.50 £9.00 S

Page 12

Page 25

gwydion.batten_9
Text Box
NoteMonthly Business Parking permits in line with other parking raises approved by Full council.Parking Penalties can only be set within defined Min-Max rangeBurrows Motorcycles & Car - Evening charges previously approved by full council at £2.40 but ranger wants to work in increments of £0.50p to keep traffic moving at peak times.Other Burrows increases in line with other parking charge increases approved by full council.



 Torridge District Council -  Fees & Charges 2023/24

   Note: Amounts listed include VAT (if applicable) 2022/23 2023/24 VAT Status

Harbour/Pilotage/Mooring Charges 

Harbour charges

£0.60 £0.64 Z

£0.75 £0.80 Z

N/A N/A Z

£1.35 £1.45 Z

Connection - per vessel £27.00 £29.00 Z

Supply - per tonne £1.50 £2.00 Z

Craneage (during working hours)

£50.00 £53.50 S

£80.00 £85.50 S

£30.00 £32.00 S

Pilotage Charges

£0.40 £0.43 Z

25% of full 

charge

25% of Full 

charge Z

£100.00 £107.00 Z

£125.00 £133.00 Z

£325.00 £345.00 Z

Pilot Boat Services - varies depending on size of vessel: £0 - £325 Remove Z

Pilot Boat Services - surcharge within River Taw: N/A £260.00 Z

Pilot Boat Services -Towage and recovery (per two hour or part thereof) £150.00 £160.00 Z

Pilot Boat Services - Towage within harbour area (per two hour or part thereof) £100.00 £107.00 Z

Mooring Labour £75.00 £80.00 Z

Pilot Exemption Certificates

Examination £135.00 £144.50 N

Certificate £35.50 £38.00 N

Renewal £35.50 £38.00 N

Fishing Vessel Landing Fee's - per £ ad valorem

Fresh Direct from sea, Private Landings, Frozen Imports, Fish Meal £0.02 £0.03 N

Consigned Inwards £0.02 £0.03 S

Mooring Charges

Pleasure mooring charges Bank End - Per Week up to 20m £50.00 £53.50 S

Pleasure mooring charges Bank End - Per Week >20 to 50m £70.00 £75.00 S

Pleasure mooring charges Bank End - Per Month up to 20m £150.00 £160.00 S

Pleasure mooring charges Bank End - Per Month >20m to 50m £200.00 £215.00 S

Pleasure mooring charges Bank End - Per Annum £ per metre £40.00 £43.00 S

£43.00 £46.00 Z

£43.00 £46.00 S

Churchfield & Riverbank Slipway charges (Payment via parking meter)

£6.00 N/A S

£10.00 N/A S

£50.00 N/A S

£70.00 N/A S

£200.00 N/A S

£320.00 N/A S

Commercial & Fishing Boat Mooring >15tonnes - per metre per annum

Commercial & Fishing Boat Mooring <15 tonnes - per metre per annum

Permit covering period 1st April to 30th September for launching and parking for one vehicle 

(Trailer must stay attached to vehicle at all times)

Pilot puts to sea to meet a vessel at her expected time of arrival but does not pilot her because 

she fails to keep her time of arrival, the pilot shall be entitled to make an attendance charge of:

Wharfage (loaded on or off) (Clay) - per tonne of cargo

Wharfage (loaded on or off) (Logs) - per tonne of cargo

Single boat lift - per tonne (minimum charge of 2 tonnes)

Conservancy Charge - per gross tonne

Craneage (loaded on or off) - per tonne of cargo

One month permit for launching and parking for one vehicle 

3 month permit for launching and parking for one vehicle 

And additional pilot boat fee of (River Torridge):

1 x launch only

1 x launch and parking for one vehicle

Water

Crane moving cost - per mile (minimum 1 mile)

5 x launches and parking for one vehicle

Other crane lifts (per lift, Minimum charge 2 lifts)

Charge with Pilot Exemption Certificate

Charge incl. boarding, landing and boatman - per gross tonne

Pilot ordered to attend a vessel at tide time and such vessel does not then leave

Page 13

Page 26

gwydion.batten_10
Text Box
NoteIncreased where market will allow TDC to remain competitive/comparative.Slipway charges are now through parking meter. Cars/Trailers have to pay the standard parking charges for each space occupied



 Torridge District Council -  Fees & Charges 2023/24

   Note: Amounts listed include VAT (if applicable) 2022/23 2023/24 VAT Status

Housing

Part A - Application Fee (Plus DBS Fee) £321.30 £348.90 N

Part B - Grant Fee (Management & Enforcement) £180.00 £195.50 N

Houses in Multiple Occupation (HMO) Licence Variation

Inspection required N/A N/A N

No Inspection required N/A N/A N

Per night for a single/1.5 person room £43.60 £47.10 E

Per night for a family room £48.22 £52.10 E

Per night £2.80 £3.00 E

Per night, per additional person - laundry charge. £0.15 £0.15 E

Council Owned & Private Sector Leased Properties (Temporary Accommodation for Homeless Households):

Per night for a two bedroom property £18.08 LHA Rate E

Per night for a three bedroom property £21.37 LHA Rate E

Per night for a four bedroom property £26.14 LHA Rate E

Notices

Prohibition, Improvement or Emergency Prohibition £258.20 £280.40 N

Review of Notice/Suspended Notice (Inspection Required) £185.00 £200.00 N

Review of Notice/Suspended Notice (No Inspection Required) £108.50 £117.80 N

Immigration Housing Requests - visit and report £202.50 £220.00 S

Houses in Multiple Occupation (HMO) Licence

Hostel Rents:

Hostel Service Charges:

Page 14

Page 27

gwydion.batten_11
Text Box
NotePrices increased for inflation where appropriate.Council Owned and PSL Temporary Accommodation (will include pods) to be set at LHA rate announced later in new year (set by VOA).



 Torridge District Council -  Fees & Charges 2023/24

   Note: Amounts listed include VAT (if applicable) 2022/23 2023/24 VAT Status

Electoral Registration

Confirmation of Residency Letters - per letter

£6.00 or 

*No Charge 

£6.00 or 

*No Charge N

*This will only be charged if additional work by reviewing previous years is undertaken

Researching the Electoral Register 

Per each year manually researched £5.00 £5.00 N

Local Land Charges

The following fees marked with an asterisk include fees charged by Devon County Council 

for their replies to CON 29 and CON 29O Enquiries

LLC1 + CON 29 (i.e. Standard Search)* £83.22 £93.13 Split S & N

Additional Parcel of Land £0.92 £1.02 Split S & N

LLC1 Certificate of Search £7.13 £7.13 N

Additional Parcel of Land £0.42 £0.42 N

CON 29 Enquiries of the Local Authority (2016)* £76.09 £86.00 S

Additional Parcel of Land £0.50 £0.60 S

CON 29O Enquiries of the Local Authority (2016) when raised with CON 29

Q.4 Road proposals by private bodies £5.09 £5.60 S

Q.5 Advertisements £1.69 £2.00 S

Q.6 Completion Notices* £2.50 £2.80 S

Q.7 Parks and Countryside* £2.16 £2.16 S

Q.8 Pipelines £0.34 £0.40 S

Q.9 Houses in Multiple Occupation £1.40 £1.60 S

Q.10 Noise Abatement £1.68 £2.00 S

Q.11 Urban Development Areas N/a N/a S

Q.12 Enterprise Zones N/a N/a S

Q.13 Inner Urban Improvement Areas N/a N/a S

Q.14 Simplified Planning Zones N/a N/a S

Q.15 Land Maintenance Notices N/a £2.00 S

Q.16 Mineral Consultation Areas* £3.58 £4.00 S

Q.17 Hazardous Substance Consents £0.34 £0.50 S

Q.18 Environmental and Pollution Notices £2.68 £3.00 S

Q.19 Food Safety Notices £1.68 £2.00 S

Q.20 Hedgerow Notices £0.85 £1.00 S

Q.21 Flood Defence and Land Drainage Consents* £3.24 £3.24 S

Q.22 Common Land and Town or Village Greens* £5.40 £5.40 S

(Note: CON 29O Enquiries of the Local Authority (2016) submitted on their own or raised 

separately, incur an additional admin fee (see below))

Page 15

Page 28

gwydion.batten_12
Text Box
NoteLLC1 Searches being transferred to Land Registry - intended to be before April but due to HMLR IT issues TDC may be required to retain these for a period, likely only a matter of weeksFees marked with * may change if DCC adjust their pricesFees have been reviewed on Cost Recovery basis and amended where appropriate




 Torridge District Council -  Fees & Charges 2023/24

   Note: Amounts listed include VAT (if applicable) 2022/23 2023/24 VAT Status

£6.00 £6.60 S

(Note: See admin fee below)

CON 29 Enquiries of the Local Authority (2016)

Q.1.1 Planning and Building Decisions and Pending Applications

(a)-(I) £9.17 £10.00 S

(j)-(l) £2.26 £3.29 S

Q.1.2 Planning Designations and Proposals* £4.80 £5.30 S

Q.2 Roads and public rights of way* £3.91 £1.80 S

Q.3.1 Land required for public purposes £0.79 £1.00 S

Q.3.2 Land to be acquired for Road Works* £1.31 £0.60 S

Q.3.3 Drainage matters* £6.48 £7.20 S

Q.3.4 Nearby Road Schemes* £5.17 £5.70 S

Q.3.5 Nearby Railway Schemes* £3.83 £4.20 S

Q.3.6 Traffic Schemes* £9.34 £4.30 S

Q.3.7 Outstanding Notices* £2.83 £3.10 S

Q.3.8 Contravention of Building Regulations £0.61 £1.00 S

Q.3.9 Notices, Orders, Directions and Proceedings under Planning Acts* £3.86 £4.30 S

Q.3.10 Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) £0.79 £0.79 S

Q.3.11 Conservation Area £0.64 £1.00 S

Q.3.12 Compulsory Purchase* £4.16 £4.60 S

Q.3.13 Contaminated Land £0.91 £1.00 S

Q.3.14 Radon Gas £0.91 £0.91 S

Q.3.15 Assets of Community Value £0.91 £0.91 S

£18.07 £25.00 S

Free Free S

Free Free S

Inspection of the  Local Land Charges Register (i.e. a Personal Search)

Each additional enquiry raised by applicant with a Standard Search application 

The following charges apply when requesting component CON 29 Enquiries about a property 

and will also incur the admin fee detailed below.

Access to inspect and manually search unrefined Council records/information in situ in order to 

compile answers to CON 29 Enquiries

Admin Fee (Payable in addition to the cost of any Component CON 29 and CON 29O Enquiries of 

the Local Authority (2016) or additional enquiries submitted on their own or raised separately)

Page 16

Page 29

gwydion.batten_13
Text Box
NoteFees marked with * may change if DCC adjust their pricesFees have been reviewed on Cost Recovery basis and amended where appropriate




 Torridge District Council -  Fees & Charges 2023/24

   Note: Amounts listed include VAT (if applicable) 2022/23 2023/24 VAT Status

Room Hire

Caddsdown

Taw conference suite

£153.00 £166.00 S

£92.00 £100.00 S

£71.00 £77.00 S

Torridge conference suite

Full Day £153.00 £166.00 S

Half Day £92.00 £100.00 S

£71.00 £77.00 S

Studio J Meeting Room

Full Day £58.00 £63.00 S

Half Day £29.00 £32.00 S

Other Facilities

Refreshments - per serving £2.50 £2.70 S

S

10% discount 10% discount S

Site Tenants discount 25% discount 25% discount S

Windmill Lane Main Chamber

Per Day (9am-4pm) £50.00 £54.00 E

Per session (9am-12pm, 1pm-4pm) £30.00 £33.00 E

Per hour after 4pm £25.00 £27.00 E

Note: Bookings subject to checks with Northam Town Council

Rates are 

doubled

Rates are 

doubled S

25% discount 25% discount E

25% discount 25% discount S

£21.00 £23.00 S

Monthly Membership

5 Days Per Week N/A £90.00 E

3 Days Per Week N/A £60.00 E

1 day Per Week N/A £40.00 E

Pay as you go

Full day 9-5 N/A £20.00 E

Half Day 9-1 / 1-5 N/A £10.00 E

School Run Day (6 Hours) N/A £15.00 E

Meeting Room

Full Day N/A £70.00 E

Half Day N/A £40.00 E

Hourly N/A £15.00 E

Full Day N/A £150.00 E

Half Day N/A £100.00 E

Setting up and clearing away (extra outside booked times), per hour

Trade (Commercial) Use - per day

Full Day

Half Day

Wedding Ceremonies - booked via Devon County Council Registrar

Lunchtime buffet - details available on request

Regular use discount - more than 10 booking made at same time

Regular use discount - more than 6 booking made at same time

Wedding Ceremonies - booked via Devon County Council Registrar

Registered charities and cultural bodies & societies

Additional charges and discounts Windmill Lane

Entire Venue Hire - Conference Room

Castle Hill Work Hub Great Torrington

Page 17

Page 30

gwydion.batten_14
Text Box
NoteFee's adjusted for inflation where appropriateCastle Hill WorkHub opened in year.




 Torridge District Council -  Fees & Charges 2023/24

   Note: Amounts listed include VAT (if applicable) 2022/23 2023/24 VAT Status

Fishdock

Ice - charge per tonne £61.00 £66.00 Z

Waste Management Services

£22.00 £25.00 N

£19.00 £22.00 N

£22.00 £25.00 N

£19.00 £22.00 N

£29.50 £32.00 N

£25.00 £27.00 N

£36.50 £40.00 N

£31.50 £35.00 N

£2.35 £2.70 S

(Domestic waste from business premises). Per bag, bag supplied by owner

Commercial waste bags includes disposal £3.20 £3.80 N

N/A N/A S

£45.00 £52.00 N

*In order for members of the public to be eligible to have their bulky item waste collected at the concessionary rate, residents will need to provide 

evidence that they are eligible for either Housing or Council Tax benefits, or proof of disability

Customer Services

Agendas *

£175.00 N/A S

£162.00 N/A S

* These are freely available online from https://democracy.torridge.gov.uk 

Council Tax/Business Rates

Summons £55.00 £55.00 E

Liability Order £10.00 £10.00 E

Plans Committee Agendas

All other Agendas

Composting Bin

Per year

Collection of fridge or freezer - per item

Concessionary rate*

1 to 2 Bulky Items (3 piece suites counts as 2 items)

Concessionary rate*

3 Bulky Items

Concessionary rate*

Green Waste - Annual collection charge (per green bin)

4 Bulky Items

Concessionary rate*

Schedule 2 waste – collection not disposal

Page 18

Page 31

gwydion.batten_15
Text Box
NoteIncreased where market will allow TDC to remain competitive/comparative.Agenda printing service no longer required as all on line for no charge




 Torridge District Council -  Fees & Charges 2023/24

   Note: Amounts listed include VAT (if applicable) 2022/23 2023/24 VAT Status

General

Miscellaneous

£4.00 £4.00 S

Radiolink

Bideford scheme £145.00 £150.00 S

Drone Services (Including Pilot)

Half Day £300.00 £300.00 S

Full Day £500.00 £500.00 S

Payroll

Processing payroll for the Parish Clerk:

Initial setup fee per employee £26.00 £28.50 S

Charge per payslip £10.50 £11.50 S

Legal Department

Certifying Pensions (to enable people to claim overseas pensions) £26.25 £50.00 S

Planning Agreements (Section 106) - Legal Charge (per hour) £84.00 £125.00 N

Misc. Compliance Certificates (Section 157 etc.) £75.00 £100.00 N/S

Legal Advice for Parish Councils N/A £125.00 S

Lease Agreements - 

Prices shown inclusive of VAT - this may not be applicable in all circumstances as VAT Status follows taxable status of property

Administration/Set Up Fee (Net Rent of £601 PA or over) £75.50 £125.00 E/S

Administration/Set Up Fee Lease Renewal (Net Rent of £601 PA or over) N/A £100.00 E/S

Administration/Set Up Fee (Net Rent of £600 PA or lower) £31.50 £62.50 E/S

Administration/Set Up Fee Lease Renewal (Net Rent of £600 PA or lower) N/A £50.00 E/S

Termination Fee (if termination occurs within the first year of the term) £75.50 £125.00 E/S

Termination Fee (if termination occurs after the first year of the term) £50.50 £125.00 E/S

Amendments (which require a change in the original Lease) £38.00 £100.00 E/S

Licence for Alterations N/A £150.00 E/S

£38.00 N/A E/S

Garden Lease Administration Fee £31.50 N/A E/S

Garden Lease Termination Fee £31.50 N/A E/S

Freedom of Information Charges / EIR Charges

Where possible simple requests under the Freedom of Information Act or Environmental Information Regulations will be processed free of 

charge. However we are permitted a charge to cover photocopying, (currently A4 - 10p per side, larger then A4 price on request

documents produced externally will be charged at cost), and postage at cost. We will advise you of any costs involved during the

processing of your request. More complex FOI/EIR enquiries may attract an additional charge to cover officers time in obtaining the data 

requested but will conform to Government/ICO guidelines (currently £25 per hour or part thereof). We will again advise you of any likely 

charges your request might incur. Standard charges will also be made for Information subject to a charging regime approved by Parliament

or the Council.

Fees & Charges Booklet Last Updated: 08/12/22

Flood defence sacks (Aqua-sacs)

Deed of Surrender (termination of lease prior to end of the Break Notice) + Termination Fee as 

above

Page 19

Page 32

gwydion.batten_16
Text Box
NoteLease agreements reviewed for officer time recoveryGarden lease fee's no longer a separate charge




 

  

REPORT OF Section 151 Officer  

To: Community and Resources Committee 

Subject: Budget 2023/24, Medium Term Financial Strategy 2023/24 – 2027/28 

Date: 30th January 2023 Reference:  

 
PURPOSE OF REPORT:  For Members to consider, formulate and recommend the Budget 
2023/24 to Full Council. 
 
The Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) indicates the possible extent of the budget and 
funding shortfall that the Council will face in the future. It is an aid in identifying the extent of 
service changes that the Council will need to make to achieve a balanced budget in each financial 
year up to 2027/28  
 

 
1. Introduction 

 
1.1. The Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) provides an annual update of the Council’s 

financial situation for the current and forthcoming five years.  It illustrates through the 
application of forecasts and assumptions where and how spending pressures could 
materialise; how different funding sources may change, and the savings plans required to 
manage any identified revenue budget gap.  

 
1.2. The MTFS provides the basis for the members to consider the 2023/24 budget and also 

whether an increase in Council Tax should be recommended to Full Council for 2023/24. 
 

1.3. Whilst considering the 2023/24 Budget and the MTFS it is prudent to review and assess the 
levels and types of financial reserves the Council holds.  This review is conducted in light of 
the levels of risk the Council faces and the potential financial impact if a major risk comes to 
fruition. 
 

2. Recap – Approved budget 2021/22 and Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) 
 

2.1 Full Council on the 21st February 2022 approved the Council Tax and Budget for the 
financial year 2022/23 and the MTFS for the period ending 31st March 2027, as detailed in 
the table below.  

 
 

    
As the table above shows the Council was in February 2022 predicting funding shortfalls in each of 
the financial years of the MTFS period. 
 

2022-23 - 

£'000

2023-24 - 

£'000

2024-25 - 

£'000

2025-26 - 

£'000

2026-27 - 

£'000

Cost of Services 9,707 9,709 9,964 10,236 10,571

Movement to / (from) reserve (1,354) 727 850 816 784

Other - Financing/Vacancy Factor (370) (3) (45) (97) (97)

Subtotal - Expenditure 7,983 10,433 10,769 10,955 11,258

Funding

Central Government Grant Funding (1,181) (1,040) (1,042) (1,044) (1,047)

Council Tax (4,490) (4,553) (4,766) (4,947) (5,131)

Retained Business Rates (1,939) (4,211) (4,651) (4,857) (5,073)

Subtotal - Income (7,610) (9,804) (10,459) (10,848) (11,251)

Use of Reserves to balance (373) (629) (310) (107) (7) (1,426)

Page 33

Agenda Item 9



 

2.2 The use of the Transition in Government Funding Reserve (TGFR) to balance the 
Councils budgets over the life of the MTFS were as shown below. Essentially the TGFR 
was projected to be significantly reduced by the end of the MTFS period. 

 

  
 

2.3 The Financial reports presented to Full Council on the 21st February 2022 also included 
the approval of the Council’s capital program and its funding. Full Council on the 21st 
February 2022 approved a capital program of £30.4m, with identified sources of funding 
of £30.1m. 

 
3.       The Financial Year 2022-23 

 
3.1. Inflation 

 
The 2022-23 budgets were approved by Full Council on the 21st February 2022, three days 
later Russia invaded Ukraine. Inflation was already becoming of matter of some concern to 
officers within the Council (particularly construction price inflation) prior to the Russian 
invasion. In the aftermath of the invasion inflation rose to heights not seen in the UK for a 
generation. 
 
2022-23 Pay Awards 
 

In line with many other Councils, Torridge set aside 2% for the 2022-23 pay award which 
was still outstanding at the time the 2022-23 budgets were agreed. With inflation exceeding 
10% and with Central Government making a commitment to increase the National Living 
Wage (NLW) by inflation; the 2% set aside for the pay award quickly became inadequate.   
 
With the NLW effective from the 1st April 2023 potentially exceeding five of the lowest local 
authority pay points, the pay offer from the local authority employers was for a flat increase 
of £1,925 per scale point.  For Torridge this equated to an increase of circa 7% to the 
Council pay bill; the additional costs being circa £430k which would be subsequently borne 

in each year of the MTFS 
 
Fuel 

 
One of the impacts of the Russian invasion of the Ukraine was significant inflationary 
pressures on Fuel prices. The biggest impact upon the Council’s being incurred by the 
Council’s Refuse and Street Cleansing fleet. The impact of the additional fuel costs being 
circa £120k. 

 

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

1400

1600

1800

2021-22 -
£'000

2022-23 -
£'000

2023-24 -
£'000

2024-25 -
£'000

2025-26 -
£'000

2026-27 -
£'000

Balance on TGFR 
£'000 

Page 34



 

 
Utilities. 

 
2022-23 also saw unprecedented increases in the costs of utilities (Gas & Electricity), the 
Council was on a fixed term which expired in October 2022, consequently it was somewhat 
protected from market volatility.  However utilities are anticipated to exceed budget in 2022-
23 by circa £100k. 
 
Other Inflationary pressures 
 

The Council has several contracts/agreements where annual uplifts are linked to inflation, 
e.g. the Council’s insurance contract is linked to inflation (Sept 2022 circa 10%) and the 
property element of the insurance contract is linked to the cost of rebuilding properties in 
the event of fire/flood etc.  Consequently the insurance costs in 2022-23 were £56k above 
budget. 
 
Construction price inflation has seen the costs of the Council’s planned capital works and 
planned maintenance rise significantly, putting pressures on both the revenue and capital 
budgets. 
 

3.2 Housing Crisis – costs of temporary accommodation 
 

 The last quarter of the financial year 2021-22 saw a steep rise in the Council’s expenditure 
on temporary accommodation, which has continued throughout 2022-23. In meeting its 
obligations to those residents at risk of homelessness, the Council incurs temporary 
accommodation costs, whilst it attempts to find substantial long term tenancies.  The 
current housing market has seen a dramatic rise in rents within the private rental market, 
making rents increasingly unaffordable. 

 
 Consequently the length of time residents at risk of homelessness are in temporary 

accommodation has risen which has resulted in very significant increased costs to the 
Council. The chart below demonstrates the sharp rise in temporary accommodation costs, 
of which only a modest proportion is recoverable from Housing Benefits. 

 

  
 

  

Page 35



 

 
 

4 Sources of Council’s Funding and Expenditure breakdown 
 
4.1 Source of Council Funding 
 
 The Council has four mainstreams of funding 
 

 Council Tax  

Increases in Council Tax are constrained by Referendum Levels, for a District 
Council like Torridge the limit is £5 for Band D equivalent or up to 3% whichever is 
the greater; for Torridge this is 2.99%.   
 

 Business Rates 
Torridge is the billing authority for Business Rates, it retains 40% of the business 
rates collected (after paying the tariff to Central Government). Where Torridge in its 
capacity as the planning authority gave consent for a renewable energy scheme, it 
retains 100% of the business rates payable. 
 
The rateable value of businesses is set by the Valuation office, with the rate in the 
pound charged being determined by Central Government. Central Government also 
determines various reliefs and discounts for business rates which Torridge in its 
capacity as billing authority is obliged to implement. 
 

 Central Government Grant 

Torridge along with all other local authorities receives central government grant 
funding.  For district authorities like Torridge central government grant funding has  
since 2013 (with the introduction of retained business rates) become a less 
significant source of funding when compared to unitary and upper tier authorities. 
 

 Fees and Charges 

Fees and Charges are the Council’s biggest single source of revenue. Fees and 
Charges can be broken down in three main categories: 
 

o Charges set by statute, such as planning fees, licensing fees etc 
o Charges set to recover the Council’s costs, e.g., land charges  
o Discretionary charges such as car parking 

 
  

Page 36



 

The chart below shows the relationship between the four main funding streams. 
 

 
 

    
4.2 Council Expenditure 
 
 The chart below shows the gross expenditure of the Council (excluding  Housing Benefit 

payments of circa £12m); as with most organisations pay represents the biggest single item 
of expenditure. 

 

  
 
As the chart above shows Torridge has incurred expenditure pressures across all 
expenditure categories. Pay and the costs associated with Tempoary Accomodation being 
the greatest area of expenditure pressure. 
 

  

 -

 2,000

 4,000

 6,000

 8,000

 10,000

 12,000

PAY RELATED PREMISES TRANSPORT SUPPLIES & 
SERVICES 

TEMP ACCOM 

£'000          Torridge Expenditure by type 

2022-23 - £'000 2023-24 - £'000

Page 37



 

 
 

5. 2023-24 Provisional Local Government Financial Settlement 
 
5.1 The provisional settlement was published on the 21st December 2022; the key points to 

note are: 
 The settlement was confirmed for one year only. 

 

 The Revenue Support Grant was uplifted by CPI, two previously separate grants 
were incorporate within the RSG, namely: 

o Council Tax Annex Grant  
o Local Council Support  

 
 Rural Services Delivery Grant remains unchanged – for the third year it has not 

been uplifted by inflation. 
 

 New Homes Bonus funding only confirmed for 2023-24, no legacy payments 
accruing. 

 

 Services grant reduced by £200m nationally reflecting reduced Employer’s National 
Insurance contributions 

 

 The lower tier services grant (£111m nationally) and a proportion of expired New 
Homes Bonus legacy payments (estimated at £276m nationally) have been 
repurposed to guarantee that all authorities see an increase in Core Spending 
Power (CSP) of at least 3%. 

o CSP being the income Torridge derives from Council Tax, Business Rates 
and Central Government Grants. 
 

 Business Rate Pools to continue for 2023-24 (Torridge is a member of the Devon 
Business Rate Pool). 

 
The Settlement for Torridge is summarised in the table below 
 

 
 

2022-23 2023-24 Notes

Revenue Support Grant 138 310

Local Council Tax Support Admin Grant65 0 Combined into RSG

Council Tax Annex Grant 86 0 Combined into RSG

Subtotal 289 310

Rural Sparisty Funding 497 497 No inflation uplift   ****

Lower Services Support Grant 107 0 Removed

Services Grant 164 92 Reduced - Employer NI Contributions

Funding Guarantee Grant 0 239

To ensure 3% minimum increase to 

CSP

New Homes Bonus 275 141 Reduced -no legacy payment

Total 1,332    1,279    

CSP - Comprehensive Spending Power

**** - Effectively a 10% cut in funding of circa £50k

Central Government Grant Settlement

Page 38



 

For Torridge District Council the provisional settlement has seen its Core Spending Power 
(CSP) increase by 4.5%, which given inflation is circa 10.7% is a real term reduction of 
6.2%.  

 
 The chart below shows the increase in Core Spending Power for Torridge compared to 

inflation and other authorities. 
 

  
 
 As the chart above shows the CSP for Torridge at 4.5% is significantly below inflation (the 

yellow line) and below the average for other shire districts at 5%. It is significantly below that of 
upper tier and unitary authorities. 

 
6. Council Tax 
 
6.1 Central Government assessment of Core Spending Power ( the resources available to local 

authorities) is built on the expectation that Council Tax will increase year on year in line with 
the approved referendum limits; currently up to 3% or £5 per Band D Equivalent, whichever 
is the greater. For Torridge an increase of 2.99% is greater than a £5 increase to a Band D 
property. 

 
 If a local authority chooses not to increase its Council Tax, no compensating increase to its 

CSP would be forthcoming from Central Government.  Furthermore due to the restrictions 
imposed by referendum constraints it will not be possible to make up this shortfall in 
subsequent years. 

 
 Local Authorities are obliged by statue to declare their tax base in Band D equivalents. The 

tax base is the mechanism by which Torridge and its preceptors calculate the income they 
will derive from the Council Tax levied. Torridge’s calculation is shown below 

 

 

Disabled A B C D E F G H Total

Number of properties 8,225 7,278 7,067 5,855 3,372 1,137 374 30 33,338

after discounts, reliefs etc 22 6,895 6,477 6,460 5,433 3,160 1,074 351 18 29,890

less LCTS (8) (1,208) (598) (339) (173) (41) (9) (2) 0 (2,378)

Revised total 14 5,687 5,879 6,121 5,260 3,119 1,065 349 18 27,512

Convert to Band D 5/9 6/9 7/9 8/9 9/9 11/9 13/9 15/9 18/9

Band D equivalents 8            3,791    4,573   5,441 5,260   3,812   1,538 582   36   25,041

add new properties 213

less non collection (505)

Tax base in Band Ds 24,749

Page 39



 

  
 Essentially in calculating the Tax base the first step is identify the total number of properties 

liable for Council Tax as the end of November.  Then the impact of various discounts such 
as disabled relief, single person discount etc are calcualted to give a revised figure. 

 
 The impact (reduced Council Tax liability) arising from the awarding of Local Council Tax 

Support (LCTS) is also calculated.   
 
 As per statute the figure is then converted in Band D equivalents; the same adjustments 

before finalalising the tax base is to estimate: 

 How many new properties will become eligbile for Council Tax 

 And the allowance for the non collection of Council Tax 
 
6.2 In 2022-23 the average Band D equivalent Council Tax within Torridge is £2,144.91 of 

which the amount levied by Torridge Council was £178.66, with an estimated collectable 
tax base of 24,447.03 Band D Equivalent properties. This equates to a Council Tax income 
for Torridge of £4.37m for the financial year 2022/23. 

 
6.3 On the 20

th
 December 2022 Full Council approved the tax base for 2023-24 at 24,749.62 

Should Torridge increase its Council tax in line with its referendum levels 2.99% then a 
Band D charge would be £184.00; Torridge’s Council Tax income for 2023/24 would be 
£4.45m 

 
6.4 Whilst by statute councils are obliged to report their tax base in Band D equivalents and 

increases to Council Tax are referenced to the Band D equivalent, the majority of properties 
within Torridge fall within Bands A-C.  

 
The table below shows the number of properties liable for Council Tax by band, the 
Torridge element of the Council Tax levied and how much a 2.99% increase on a Band D 
Equivalent would be by Band for 2023-24.  

 

            
 

As the table above shows 68% of properties within Torridge fall within Bands A – C and so 
would pay less than 10p extra a week extra if Torridge’s Council Tax was to increase by the 
referendum limit of 2.99%. 
 
The Council Tax levied by Torridge is only one component of the Council Tax bill levied on 
its residents. Over recent years the proportion of Council Tax levied by Torridge Council 
has been in decline. This is due to a combination of factors such as Devon County Council 

Council 

Tax 

Band

Number of 

Properties

Torridge 

22-23 

Charge

Impact of 

2.99% 

increase

Weekly 

increase

A 8,225          119.11     £3.56 £0.07

B 7,278          138.96     £4.15 £0.08

C 7,067          158.81     £4.75 £0.09

D 5,855          178.66     £5.34 £0.10

E 3,372          218.36     £6.53 £0.13

F 1,137          258.06     £7.72 £0.15

G 374             297.77     £8.90 £0.17

H 30               357.32     £10.68 £0.21

33,338        

Page 40



 

being able to raise an additional social care precept, above inflation rate increases for 
Devon and Cornwall Police Commissioner. and the absence of referendum limits for Town 
and Parish Councils. 
 
The table below shows the percentage of the council tax retained by Torridge Council. The 
2023/24 figure assumes increases by preceptors to their maximum (and Parish and Town 
Council precept increase of 5%). As the chart below shows Torridge’s share of Council Tax 
is likely to be circa 8.18% for the financial year 2023-24. 

 

                  
   
  

As a result of referendum restrictions for shire districts such as Torridge, its percentage 
increase as fallen behind that enjoyed by Devon County, Devon & Cornwall Police and the 
Town and Parish Councils.  Torridge and the Fire Authority have had the lowest increases 
in their council tax for several years. Cumulative Council Tax increases for the period 2016-
17 are 2023-24 are shown below. 

 

  
  

Page 41



 

 
6.5 Council Tax Support Fund  

 
In recognition of the cost of living crisis Central Government has provided funding to 
mitigate the impact of rises in Council Tax for residents in receipt of Local Council Tax 
Support (LCTS). The support is capped at £25 per household, Torridge has been provided 
with funding of £103k. Any monies not utilised in capping Council Tax increases for 
recipients of LCTS can be used to assist economically vulnerable households.  
 
The table below demonstrates that effectively there will be no increase for vast majority of 
residents in receipt of LCTS. 
 

 
 
The example above is based on a Band C property, 68% of all properties within Torridge 
are in Bands A – C.   
 
The example above also assumes that the recipient of LCTS receives the maximum 
support of 75%; over 80% of working age recipients of LCTS receive the maximum support.   
 
Pensioners can receive 100% support from the LCTS scheme, some will receive a lesser 
award if they have savings or receive another source of income such as a private pension. 

  
 

7. Business Rates Retention  

 
For 2023/24 there has been a national revaluation of all non-domestic properties, effective 
from the 1st April 2023, the last business rate revaluation was undertaken in 2017. The key 
points of interest from the latest revaluation are: 
 

 Gross ratable value for businesses within Torridge has risen to £45.4m from 
£40.8m an increase of 11%.  

 There are 4,214 properties liable for Businesses Rates 

 A package of support measures was announced to support business to accompany 
the revaluation 

o The multiplier which determines the rate in the pound has been frozen at 
49.9p for small businesses and 51.2p for larger businesses. This is the 
fourth year the multiplier has been frozen. Torridge is compensated for its 
lost income via S31 grants. 
 

o There is 75% relief for all premises in the Retail, Leisure & Hospitality sector 
for one year effective from 1st April 2023 (this is an increase from the 50% 

Preceptor

22-23 

Band C 

Charges

Projected 

Increase

23/24 

Council 

Tax

Increase 

- £

Devon County Council £1,383.52 5.00% £1,452.70 £69.18

Devon & Cornwall Police £219.16 6.08% £232.48 £13.32

Devon & Somerset Fire £81.59 5.45% £86.04 £4.45

Torridge District £158.81 2.99% £163.56 £4.75

Parish (average) £63.50 5.00% £66.68 £3.18

£1,906.58 £2,001.45 £94.87

-           -        

Council Tax Liability (75% LCTS 

support) £476.65 £500.36 £23.72

Local Council Tax Support 

Funding (Max award - £25) £23.72

Page 42



 

relief in 2022-23). The relief is capped at £110,000 per business.  There are 
circa 400 premises within Torridge who will benefit from this relief. 

 
 

o A new transitional relief scheme will be introduced effective from the 1st April 
2023. This protects businesses by capping their increases at 5%, 10% or 
30% dependent upon their ratable value. The value of this protection within 
Torridge is £1.9m. 
 

o The continuation of Small Business Relief which provides 100% relief for 
businesses that occupy one property with a ratable value of less than 
12,000: there a tapered relief for properties with ratable values between 
12,001 and 15,000.  The value of Small Business Rate Relief payable in 
Torridge is circa £5m. 

 
 

o For those businesses no longer receiving Small Business Rate Relief as a 
result of the revaluation will have the increases to their liability capped at 
£600. 
 

o The business rate income receivable from renewable energy scheme has 
risen from £605k to £711k. Torridge retains all business rates from 
renewable energy schemes where it gave planning consent. 

 

Page 43



 

8. Budget 2023-24 
 

The table below shows the proposed budget for 2023-24 and the remaining years of the 
Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS). As the table below shows the Council’s budgets 
are in deficit for each year of the MTFS.   
 
The increased deficit in 2024-25 compared to 2023-24 is largely explained by the one-off 
impact of reduced business rate appeal provision in 2023-24.   
 
The increased deficit in 2026-27 is mostly due to the cessation of the cost share agreement 
with Devon County in 2026.Torridge is currently rewarded by Devon County Council for the 
recycling tonnage it collects, this agreement end in 2026.  
 
Devon County Council are under no obligation to pay Collection Authorities like Torridge for 
collecting recycling waste.  It is not anticipated at this juncture that Devon County Council 
will make any cost share payments after 2026.  The current value of this agreement to 
Torridge is £290k per annum. 
 

 
 
Over the course of the MTFS the current cumulative projected deficit is £1.2m. The graph 
below the table shows the usage of the Transition in Government Funding Reserve (TGFR) 
to balance the budgets based upon the current financial assumptions within the MTFS. As 
the graph clearly shows without further action to bring the budgets back into balance the 
TGFR will be reduce to circa  £144k by 2027-28. 
 

 

Expenditure 2023-24 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27 2026-27

Cost of Service 10,939,195 10,978,696 11,229,249 11,837,469 12,117,720

Reserve Movement 957,932 1,003,293 1,039,293 1,077,293 1,117,293

Other - Financing, Vacancy 

Factor etc (687,074) (557,042) (574,019) (583,340) (592,849)

subtotal 11,210,053 11,424,947 11,694,523 12,331,422 12,642,164

Funding

Grants (1,279,524) (1,156,869) (1,166,462) (1,176,343) (1,186,520)

Council Tax (4,642,616) (4,946,147) (5,142,989) (5,347,372) (5,559,103)

Business Rates (5,232,936) (4,890,459) (5,198,056) (5,493,085) (5,674,493)

subtotal (11,155,076) (10,993,474) (11,507,507) (12,016,800) (12,420,116)

Use of TGFR to balance (54,977) (431,473) (187,016) (314,622) (222,048)

(1,210,136)

Page 44



 

 
The significant budget movements since the budget 2022-23 and MTFS was approved by 
Full Council in February 2022 are as detailed below: 

 

  
 

Note 1: Excludes MBWG recommendation re discretionary business rates, Council 
Tax premiums for empty properties and 2nd homes effective from 2024-25, which are 
included within the Council Tax and Business Rates lines. 
 

Note 2: Central Government Grant Income includes Local Council Tax Support grant 
previously credited directly to services and Council Tax Annex grant previously reported via 
the Collection Fund, which have now been incorporated into the Revenue support Grant 

 
Note 3: Council Tax for 2024-25 and beyond assumes additional income from 2nd 

Homes and empty homes as previously approved by Full Council. 
  

 
 

9.  Assumptions 

 
The budget 2023-24 and MTFS makes use of various assumptions, the key ones of which 
are discussed below. 
 
 Central Government Grant Funding 

The recent 2023-24 settlement was only a one year settlement, for the purpose of the 
MTFS the 2023-24 settlement levels have been largely assumed for the duration of the 
MTFS period. The exception being that an inflationary uplift to the Revenue Support 

2023-24 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27

2023-24 - MTFS (55) (431) (187) (315)

2022-23 - MTFS (629) (310) (105) (7)

Movement 574 (121) (82) (308)

(adverse) / favourable Movement

Temporary Accommodation (890) (890) (890) (890)

Fuel & Ulititlies (311) (255) (255) (255)

External Audit Fees (20) (125) (125) (125)

Insurance (56) (56) (56) (56)

Pay Award (427) (449) (492) (545)

Transfer to Reserve (160) (12) (12) (12)

Termination of Cost Share Agreement 0 0 0 (290)

MBWG Recommendations 366 410 418 418 Note 1

Hostel Accommodation 107 215 215 215

Central Government Grant Income 175 50 57 64 Note 2

Vacancy saving 48 57 66 75

Pension - Tri-annual review 269 269 269 269

Council Tax Income 90 180 195 217 Note 3

Business Rate Income 1,021 239 341 420

Environmental Centre 60 (39) (39) (39)

Interest Receivable 339 254 254 254

Other Budget movements (37) 31 (28) (28)

Subtotal 574 (121) (82) (308)

Analysis of budget movements since last MTFS (Feb 22)

Page 45



 

Grant has been assumed and the Funding Guarantee Grant has not been assumed to 
continue for the duration of the MTFS. 

 
 Council Tax Income 

In setting the Council Tax base, used for calculating the income to be derived from 
Council Tax an assessment of the expected non collection of Council is required. For 
2023-24 and the other financial years of the MTFS a collection rate of 98% has been 
assumed. 
 
The MTFS assumes that Council Tax will rise up to the referendum levels for each 
financial year of the MTFS; 2.99%. 

 
 Business Rates 

The MTFS only assumes modest growth in the business rate base of the Council of 
1.5%. Where planning applications have been made for renewable energy schemes 
(100% of business rates income retained by Torridge Council), an estimate of future 
income has been included with the MTFS.  The additional business rate income 
assumed for renewable energy schemes being 

o 2024/25 £28k 
o 2025/26 £139k 
o 2026/27 £121k 

 
 Income from short term treasury deposits 

In response to rising inflation the Government has increased the Bank of England’s 
base rate, which at the time of writing this report is 3.5%.  Consequently there has 
been a marked rise in the income the Council has obtained from its short term treasury 
deposits and interest earned on its current account. Income from short term treasury 
deposits and interest accruing on the Council current bank account over the last few 
years is shown below: 
 
2019/20    £147k 
2020/21    £  31k 
2021/22   £  20k 
2022/23   £  35k 
2023/24 projected £550k 
 
Projecting future income from short term treasury deposits and interest earned on the 
current bank account is difficult as it is dependant upon both future interest rates and 
the timing of future capital expenditure (e.g. Environmental Centre, Maritime Innovation 
Centre etc.). The MTFS assumes a reduction of £50k in income derived from short 
term deposits from 2024-25 onwards as the Council incurs expenditure on the new 
Environmental Centre and the Maritime Innovation Centre, and its cash balances 
decline. The MTFS assumes interest rates of 3% over the life of the MTFS. 
 
Whilst the Council benefits from high interest rates with respect to its short term 
treasury deposits, high interest rates increase the borrowing costs associated with 
capital projects such as the Environment Centre. 
 

 Income from Fees and charges 

For the majority of the Council’s fees and charges the annual income fluctuates within 
relatively narrow boundaries. However this is not the case for all fees and charges, 
predicting income from planning applications is challenging since a few major planning 
applications can cause significant swings in income. 
 
Income from Planning Applications over the last few financial years is shown below 
 

Page 46



 

 
 
The budget for planning income in 2023-24 and for the remaining years of the MTFS 
has been set as £790k.  Clearly the last few years have been volatile with regards to 
Planning Income. As prices for planning applications are set by statue and the Council 
can only process applications as they are submitted, it is not in the position to forecast 
income with any substantial degree of certainty. It remains to be seen how any 
economic downturn will impact upon planning income. Should planning income return to 
pre-pandemic levels then this will have a significant impact on the Council’s finances. 
 

 Pay awards. 

Government has made a commitment to increase the National Living Wage (NLW) in 
line with inflation. With inflation currently running at just under 10%, there is a potential 
for the increase in the NLW effective from April 2024 to exceed some of the lower pay 
points of the Council’s pay structure, without a significant increase to at least the lower 
Council salary scale points. 
 
The 2022-23 pay award at a flat rate of £1,925 per annum resulted in an increase to the 
Council’s pay bill of 7% (against a budgeted allocation of 2%).  The MTFS assumes a 
pay award of 5% for 2023-24 in line with Government’s projections for inflation in the 
later half of the financial year.  Pay awards of 2% are assumed for the remainder of the 
MTFS period.  For information every 1% increase to pay awards results in an increase to 
the Council’s pay bill of circa £100k. 
 
Torridge is a member of the Local Government Association pay bargaining group and 
therefore does not set its own pay award. 
 

 Employers Pension contributions 
The Council’s pension scheme is subject to a tri-annual review undertaken by Devon 
Peninsula Pensions.  The review determines  

o The employers pension contribution rate for the next three years 
o The employer’s contribution to the underlying pension deficit. 

 
The latest review effective from the 1st April 2023 saw the employer’s contribution rate 
increase to 19.5% (from previous estimate of 18.75%). However, there was a sharp 
decline in Torridge’s contribution to the underlying pension deficit, of circa £270k.   

 
The MTFS assumes that the employer’s pension contribution rate will remain at 19.5% 
for the duration of the MTFS and that the contribution to the underlying pension deficit 
will be as per the latest tri-annual review for the years 2023/24 – 2025/26, increasing 
by £20k per annum for the remainder of the MTFS. 

Page 47



 

 
 Homelessness 

 The Council’s expenditure on temporary accommodation is projected to be circa £1.3m 
in 2022-23 with only a modest proportion of these costs being recoverable from 
Housing Benefit.  Whilst the Council is striving to increase its provision of hostel 
accommodation and secure other housing, it would be not be prudent to assume that 
the Council’s liability for temporary accommodation would reduce significantly. 
Consequently, current temporary expenditure levels are projected for the remainder of 
the MTFS. 

 

 
10 Risk and sensitivity 
 

10.1 The MTFS is based upon projections and assumptions, there are risks to the Council’s 
budgets if the assumptions upon which the MTFS are erroneous. The impact of changes to 
some of the key assumptions within the MTFS are shown below to demonstrate the 
potential impact of movement in the key assumptions. 

 
 Council Tax Increase 

The MTFS assumes the Council Tax will rise by the referendum level (2.99%) for the 
duration of the MTFS. If the decision was made to not increase Torridge’s Council Tax 
for 2023-24, then the impact upon the MTFS is as shown in the charts below (figures in 
£’000).  
 
As the charts show the increased deficit arising from not increasing Council Tax for just 
one year would result in the TGFR going into deficit in during 26/27; with a deficit of 
circa  £0.5m. The cumulative costs of not increasing the Council Tax being £700k over 
the period of the MTFS 
 

 
 

Page 48



 

 
 Pay awards 

 

As the single biggest item of expenditure increases to pay above those projected within 
the MTFS represent a significant area of risk to the financial health of the Council. 
 
The current projected pay awards over the life of the MTFS are: 

o 2023-24   5% 
o 2024-25 – 2027-28 2% 

 
If actual salary uplifts for both 2023-24 and 2024-25 were to be 1% more than those 
forecast within the MTFS then the impact would be as detailed in the chart below. 
 

  
 

 
The  chart below shows the impact of increased pay award on the utilisation of the 
Transition in Government Funding Reserve (TGFR).  As pay represents the biggest item 
of expenditure for the Council additional 1% increases in salary over the MTFS forecast 
for 2023-24 & 2024-25 have a profound impact upon the TGFR. 
 

Page 49



 

 
 
 

 Interest Rates impact on income from short term treasury deposits 

 
When Full Council approved the 2022-23 budget and MTFS in February 2022, the Bank 
of England base rate was 0.5%.  The current base rate is 3.5%, a sevenfold increase. 
 
As stated previously the Council has seen a dramatic increase in its income from short 
term treasury deposits as a result of increases to the Bank of England Base Rate; allied 
to delays in the capital program such as the Environment Centre. 
 
Whilst the Council cash balances going forward are difficult to predict as they are 
dependant upon the timing of capital expenditure; based on current projections a 1% 
rise or fall in interest rates would impact on the Council’s income from short term 
treasury deposits by £125k. 

 
 

 Central Government Grant Settlement 

 
As previously stated, the 2023-24 Central Government Grant Settlement was a one 
year settlement.  Government has signalled that the Fair Funding review will not take 
place during the current parliament. It is widely expected that shire districts like Torridge 
will fare poorly under a fair funding review as they have benefited to a far larger extent 
from the Business Rate Retention scheme than unitary authorities and county councils. 
 
Given the pressures Unitary Authorities and County Councils face in dealing with their 
statutory obligations for adult social care, it would be prudent to anticipate some relative 
realignment of funding between upper tier and lower tier authorities. 
 

11. Council Reserves 
 

11.1 In addition to the Transition in Government Funding reserve, the Council holds other 
reserves, the majority of which have been assigned for Capital purposes.  The projected 
make-up of the Council’s reserves as at 31st March 2023 is as below: 

 
         £’000 

Capital Reserves      8,563 
Transition in Government Funding Reserve    1,354 
Other Earmarked Reserves     3,199 
Total         13,116 

Page 50



 

 
 
11.2 In addition to the specific reserves held above, a sum of £1.084m is also set aside as the 

General Fund Balance, which is there to deal with unforeseen events that are not budgeted 
for due to their unpredictability e.g. loss of income due to recession and cannot be met from 
other available resources in year. The balance on the General Fund being 11.1% of the 
Council’s Annual net budget 
 

11.3 The current level of monies held is considered appropriate in light of the existing and 
increased levels of risks associated with Torridge’s current operational activities and 
responsibilities and the sum held is periodically risk assessed taking account of any new 
and emerging risks. 

 
11.4 The Council utilises transfers to reserve to set aside funds for future commitments. The 

table below outlines the funds to be set aside over the MTFS, based upon the assumptions 
made regarding the Council’s income post 2023/24. 

            

 
   
12 Looking forward 
 

12.1 Clearly the Council cannot continue to spend beyond it means, the current MTFS 
projects a cumulative deficit over the life of the MTFS of £1.2m; with the Transition in 
Government Funding Reserve declining to circa £150k by the close of the MTFS period.  
As the sensitivity analysis in section 10 shows, the Council’s finances can take a 
dramatic downturn if some key assumptions prove to be erroneous; Council Tax 
increases, pay awards, interest rates, Planning Income etc. 
 

12.2 The Member Budget Working Group (MBWG) which has worked throughout 2022-23 to 
identify additional sources of income/reduced expenditure whilst adhering to the remit of 
protecting services will continue its work in coming up with proposals to bring the 
Council’s finances back into the black. 

 
12.3 The table below shows some potential actions which will further improve the Council’s 

finances. 
 

Budgeted contributions to / 

(from) Reserves

2023-24 - 

£'000

2024-25 - 

£'000

2025-26 - 

£'000

2026-27 - 

£'000

2027-28 - 

£'000

Vehicle Replacement Reserve 687 721 757 795 835

ICT Replacement 80 80 80 80 80

General Capital Contribution 180 180 180 180 180

Council Tax Spreading (11) 0 0 0 0

Property Maintenance 75 75 75 75 75

Planning Appeals 20 20 20 20 20

Funding of Apprentices (106) (106) (106) (106) (106)

Other 33 33 33 33 33

Subtotal 958 1,003 1,039 1,077 1,117

Page 51



 

 
 

o A separate report to this committee from the head of planning details a proposal 
to commence charging for the monitoring of Section 106 agreements. This has 
already been implemented in other local authorities. The figures shown in the 
table above are an estimate of the income which could be potentially generated; 
however this is dependent upon future levels of planning applications received 
which can be volatile in nature. 
 

o Active Torridge is exploring options to improve energy efficiency within their 
facilities.  It is hoped that external grant funding may be obtained which in 
conjunction with investment from the Council, could reduce the energy costs 
across the Council’s leisure facilities. 

 
o The Council continues to explore opportunities to secure additional hostel 

accommodation in response to the housing crisis. The figures quoted in the 
above table are not based on the financial benefits accruing from the Sully 
House/ Hubbastone Hostel development which will hopefully come on stream 
during 2023-24. 

 
If the additional proposals come to fruition, then the Council returns to a balanced 
budget position by 2027-28, and still has a balance on its Transition in Government 
Funding Reserve of £1.1m. 

 
13. ROBUSTNESS OF THE BUDGET  
 

Section 25 of the Local Government Act 2003 requires the Chief Financial Officer (s151  
Officer) of a billing or major precepting authority to report to Members on the following 
matters. 

 

 The robustness of the estimates made for the purposes of the budget calculations. 

 The adequacy of the proposed financial reserves contained within the budgets. 
 

Robustness of Estimates 

 
The estimates have been calculated based upon the information contained within the work 
and associated papers and guidance used to forecast the Medium Term Financial Strategy 
2023/24 to 2027/28 within this report.   
 
The following represent the areas of greatest uncertainty over the period of the MTFS 
 

 Costs associated with meeting the Council’s obligations to residents at risk of 
homelessness. 

 Central Government review of local authorities needs and resources  
 Future planning income 

 Inflationary pressures, construction price inflation, utilities and staff pay awards 
 

2023-24 

- £'000

2024-25 

- £'000

2025-26 

- £'000

2026-27 

- £'000

2027-28 - 

£'000

Funding Gap (TGFR utilisation) 55 431 187 315 222 1,210

Balance on TGFR 1,299 868 681 366 144

Potential Proposals

   Section 106 Monitoring Fees (50) (75) (75) (75) (75)

   Energy Efficiency Lesiure Sector (35) (70) (70) (70)

   Further Hostel Provision (90) (90) (90) (90)

Subtotal - revised funding Gap 5 231 (48) 80 (13) 255

Subtotal - revised balance on TGFR 1,349 1,118 1,166 1,086 1,099

Page 52



 

The final consideration is that this Council has a robust performance management 
framework in place with regular reports being presented to the Senior Management Team, 
Overview & Scrutiny (Internal) and Community & Resources Committees. This framework 
provides additional reassurance that budgets are proactively monitored and controlled 
throughout the financial year. 

 
Taking all of the above into consideration, the budget which has been recommended for 
approval by Council is sufficiently robust for members to use it as a basis for approving the 
proposed Council Tax for 2023/24 and the use of financial reserves. 

 
14. Risk Assessment 
 

The major risks associated with the achievement of both the Budget 2023/24 and the MTFS 
is that the major assumptions and forecasts highlighted in section 8 and 10 are significantly 
different to that considered to be the position now.  They are forecasts so we do expect 
them to change in both positive and negative ways and the Finance Team regularly monitor 
and update our forecast position when new information comes to light.  

 
Implications 

 
Legal Implications 
The Council is required to set a balanced annual budget. 
 
Financial Implications 
These are contained in the report. 
 
Human Resources Implications 
These will form part of the detailed budget consideration. 
 
Sustainability Implications 
These will form part of the detailed budget consideration. 
 
Equality/Diversity 
These will form part of the detailed budget consideration. 
 
Risk Management 
The Council will be required to reduce net expenditure over the medium term. The MTFS (section 
14) indicates the level of reduction required and reduces the risk of not achieving a balanced 
budget or identifying savings that are not achievable. 
 
Compliance with Policies and Strategies 
Forms part of the strategy process. 
 
Lead Member Views 
 
Councillor Hodson: 
Date of Consultation – 18th January 2023 
 

“Whilst it is always difficult to recommend and justify a decision to increase the Council Tax in any 
year, it is my opinion a necessity given the financial challenges faced by the Council. Council Tax 
is one of few areas that we have control over to manage our finances and we must plan not just for 
next year, but for the future and, therefore, I support the recommendations in the report. 
 
The provisional settlement has again been particularly disappointing, following on from several 
below inflation settlements over the previous few years . 
 
Clearly the Council faces an uncertain financial future and options will have to be developed to 
bring the budgets back into the black over the period of the MTFS”. 

    

Page 53



 

Conclusion 

The report highlights the uncertain financial challenges faced by Torridge Council in an 
increasingly uncertain environment. The Council’s commitment to its residents at risk of 
homelessness represents a significant costs to the Council. Given the current financial 
environment faced by Council across the country the financial health of Torridge is within 
reasonable parameters. However notice should be given to the financial assumptions and risks 
within the MTFS and their potential to adversely impact on the financial health of the Council. 
 
15. Recommendations: 
 
Recommend to Full Council 
 

That Members recommend to Full Council  
 
a) Torridge’s Band D Council Tax for 2023/24 be increased by (2.99%) from £178.66 to £184.00 

per year 
 

b) Torridge’s Net Revenue Budget 2023/24 is £11.155m 
 

c) The contributions to the Council’s reserves as outlined in paragraph 11.4 are approved. 
 

d) That in light of the risks to the Council’s finances identified within the report that the Member 
Working Group continue its work to bring the Council’s budgets back into balance. 

 
 

That members note: 
 
The Chief Finance Officer (s151 Officer) assurance of the robustness of the budget 2023/24 set 
out in section 13 of the report. 
 
Note the assumptions and forecast applied to develop the MTFS outlined in section 9 
 
Note the risks associated with the Budget 2023/24 and MTFS outlined in section 10 
 

 
SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 
 Consultations: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Date of Consultation – 18 January 2023 
 
Leader - Councillor Ken James 
Deputy Leader – Councillor Claire Hodson 
 
Officers Consulted –  
Steve Hearse    Chief Executive 
Sean Kearney   Head of Communities and Place 
Staci Dorey       Head of Legal & Governance  
 
 

 Contact Officer: David Heyes – Section 151 Officer 

 
Background Papers: 
  

Page 54



 

 
 

Page 55



 

  

REPORT OF Deputy Section 151 Officer  

To: Community and Resources Committee 

Subject: Capital Programme 2023/24 to 2027/28 

Date: 30th January 2023 Reference:  

 
PURPOSE OF REPORT:  For Members to consider, formulate and recommend updates to the 
Capital Programme 2023/24 to Full Council. 
 
The Capital Programme includes authorised projects which require updating due to inflationary 
pressures, along with new PIDs (Project Initiation Documents) which require authorisation from 
members before inclusion.   
 
 
 
1. Introduction 

 
1.1. The Capital Programme covers the current and forthcoming five years.   

 
It is made up of: 

- Approved Projects (PIDs) 
- New Proposed Projects (PIDs) 

 
These are funded by: 

- Current Capital Reserves 
- Future contributions from revenue 
- Current/Future Capital Receipts 
- Current/Future Capital Grants 

 
Previously the Council set aside 50% of its New Homes Bonus (NHB) funding into its 
capital program, however the level of NHB funding has been in sharp decline and is likely to  
cease in the near future. The decline in NHB funding has been a significant  contributory 
factor to the increased capital funding pressures. 
 
In addition to funding pressures, the capital programme is also under significant pressure 
from the increase in inflation. 

 
 

1.1 Capital Programme – Funding Pressures & New PIDs 
 

Due to the funding/inflation pressures that the Council is facing, no new PIDs were sought 
for inclusion in the 2023/24 Capital Programme. 
 
However projects have arisen during the year, that aim to alleviate some of the wider cost 
pressures the Council is under. 
 
These Projects are: 

- Sully House    (Approved by C&R March 2022) 
- Sully House Modular Units (Approved by C&R March 2022) 
- Hubbastone Conversion  (Approved by C&R July 2022) 

 
These projects need to be formally added to the Capital Programme. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 56

Agenda Item 10



 

 
 

1.2 Capital Programme – Bfwd 
 

The brought forward balance on the Capital Programme on 1st April 2022 was: 
 

  

Capital 
Programme   

Funding 
  

(Surplus)/ 
Shortfall 

  £'000s   £'000s   £'000s 

Capital Programme - Updated 22/23 25,986    (28,541)   (2,555) 

 
(See Appendix 1 for the breakdown) 
 
 
 

1.3  Capital Programme – Movements in the year 
 

 
Environment Centre (updated by Full Council – December 2022) 
 
Due to increasing costs, the environment Centre provision was adjusted, this included: 

- Reduced overall cost to £7.2M 
- Reduced borrowing to £2.8M 
- Various capital PIDs released, and funds reallocated to the centre 
- Future capital receipts earmarked for the centre 

 
 

Effect on Capital Programme: 
 

  

Capital 
Programme   

Funding 
  

(Surplus)/ 
Shortfall 

  £'000s   £'000s   £'000s 

Capital Programme - Updated Environment Centre 24,658    (27,213)   (2,555) 
 
 
 
Homelessness – Projects to alleviate wider cost pressures 

 
Projects are: 

- Sully House    £968K (Approved by C&R March 2022) 
- Sully House Modular Units £221K (Approved by C&R March 2022) 
- Hubbastone Conversion  £372K (Approved by C&R July 2022) 

 
The Capital Programme has £226K of budget remaining on the “Homelessness” PID, which 
was originally for £1m (with £1m of approved borrowing). To date the spend on this PID has 
been funded through general capital reserves. 
 
Hubbastone uses this remaining budget (£226K) plus other identified reserves (£146K) 
 
Sully House Modular Units have £174K grant funding, the remainder coming from capital 
reserves/borrowing. 
 
Sully House – funding to come from capital reserves/borrowing 
 
 
It is proposed that as the borrowing has not yet been utilised, that the approved borrowing 
of £1m is used for Sully House / Sully House modular, and the previous spend is funded 
from capital reserves. 

Page 57



 

 
(See appendix 2 for detailed adjustments) 
 

  

Capital 
Programme   

Funding 
  

(Surplus)/ 
Shortfall 

  £'000s   £'000s   £'000s 

Capital Programme - Updated Homelessness Projects 25,993    (27,533)   (1,540) 

 
 
 
 

Extend Capital Programme by 1 year – For a full 5 year programme 

 
(See appendix 2 for detail) 
 
Updates are for extension of existing programmes: 
 
 – Car Parks / Property / IT Equip / DFGs (disabled facilities grants) / Vehicles: 

 

  

Capital 
Programme   

Funding 
  

(Surplus)/ 
Shortfall 

  £'000s   £'000s   £'000s 

Capital Programme (2023/24) 26,856    (29,129)   (2,273) 

 
The increased surplus relates to the Vehicle Programme, and is caused by setting aside 
money for the main recycling fleet replacements in 2025/26 and 2032/33. With 2032/33 
being beyond the 5 year programme. 

 
 

1.4 Capital Programme Split 

 
The updated capital programme has a surplus of £2.3m 
 
However, a significant portion of this relates to the money we put aside to fund our refuse fleet 
in the future. (The main recycling fleet in 2025/26 and 2032/33). 
 
Therefore, the programme can be split as follows: 
 
 

      

Capital 
Programme   

Funding 
  

(Surplus)/ 
Shortfall 

      £'000s   £'000s   £'000s 
                

Vehicle Programme     5,170    (6,590)   (1,420) 

                

General Programme     21,686    (22,539)   (853) 

                

Total     26,856    (29,129)   (2,273) 
 
 
 

Note: The £1.4M surplus on the Vehicle programme is to fund the main recycling fleet 

replacement in 2032/33. 
 
 
 

 

Page 58



 

 
 
 

1.5 Capital Programme – Future Pressures 
 

The General capital programme (excluding the vehicle programme) has a surplus of £853K 
 
However, there are significant future pressures: 

 
 

      
Capital 

Programme   
Funding 

  
(Surplus)/ 
Shortfall 

      £'000s   £'000s   £'000s 

General Programme     21,686    (22,539)   (853) 

                

Pressures:               

Leisure (3 centres, £60K per site per year = £900K)   900    (521)     

Electric Vehicles (Including refuse)     327          

New PIDs from 2023 to 2028     ???         

Linear defence - working with environment agency   ???   ???     

Future INFLATION !!!!      ???         

                

                

Capital Programme - Updated 22/23     22,586    (23,060)   (474) 
 
 
Appledore Clean Maritime Innovation Centre 
 

At the time of writing this report, it was announced that Torridge has been successful and 
awarded just under £15.6m for the creation of a Clean Maritime Innovation Centre in Appledore.  
 
The council will be contributing to the project by providing the site, and through additional 
borrowing required to meet the total cost of the project.  
 
Additional borrowing costs are to be funded by the rental income that the site generates, making 
the project cost neutral in the context of the capital programme. (i.e. no effect on the current 
capital programme surplus) 
 
For the project to be added to the capital programme a detailed PID will be submitted to Full 
Council. 
 
 

1.6 Capital Programme – Updated 

 
See Appendix 3 for the current capital programme by project including the movements in year 
from 1.3 above. 

 

 
 
Implications 

 
Legal Implications 
The Council is required to set a balanced annual budget. 
 
Financial Implications 
If the recommendations below are used to update the Capital Programme, the Capital Programme 
will have a surplus of £2.2M (£0.9M General Capital Programme surplus). 

Page 59



 

 
Human Resources Implications 
There are no specific human resources implications. 

 
Sustainability Implications 
There are no specific sustainability implications. 

 
Equality/Diversity 
There are no specific equality/diversity issues.  

 
Risk Management 
A funded Capital Programme ensures the Council has the assets required to run its key services, 
and the existing Council’s assets are maintained. 
 
Compliance with Policies and Strategies 
This Report fits within the Councils Capital Strategy. 
 
 
 
Lead Member Views 
 
Councillor Hodson: 
Date of Consultation – 19th January 2023 
 

“The Council has a significant Capital Programme, which is currently fully funded. 
 
However it is facing some significant funding pressures, from both inflation and future capital 
requirements. 
 
Any additional spend to the Capital Programme should be considered with these pressures in 
mind, therefore I support the recommendations in the report”. 
 
 
 
Conclusion 

The report highlights the pressures on the Capital Programme, in an environment where there is 
increasing uncertainty on the revenue budget.  
 
 
 
 
 
1.9 Recommendations: 
 

That Members recommend to Full Council  
 
 
a) The Capital Programme is updated to include: 

o Sully House     
o Sully House Modular Units  
o Hubbastone Conversion 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 60



 

SUPPORTING INFORMATION 

 
 Consultations: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Date of Consultation – 19 January 2023 
 
Deputy Leader – Councillor Claire Hodson 
 
Officers Consulted –  
Steve Hearse    Chief Executive 
Sean Kearney   Head of Communities and Place 
Staci Dorey       Head of Legal & Governance  

 Contact Officer: Peter Hudson – Deputy Section 151 Officer 

 

Page 61



Appendix 1 – Capital Programme 2022/23  
 

Capital Programme – Bfwd 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1 Capital Programme Update 2022-23

Capital 

Programme
Funding

(Surplus)/ 

Shortfall

£'000s £'000s £'000s

General Programme 24,368 (24,827) (459)

Vehicle Programme (Extended to 32/33) 5,377 (6,064) (687)

Capital Programme (Feb 2022) 29,745 (30,891) (1,146)

Includes following commitments: (remove as no formal PID)

Leisure (3 sites @£60K per yr for 5 years) (900) 521

Electric Vehicle - additional costs (327)

28,518 (30,370) (1,852)

Year end adjustments

Burrows - final cost (includes £100K stewardship costs/grant) 279 (100)

IT desktop strategy timings/reserve correction 71 (142)

Work hub 39 (39)

28,907 (30,651) (1,744)

2021/22 Additions

Capital spend for the year (2,921) 2,921

Capital Programme - Updated 22/23 25,986 (27,730) (1,744)

Funding Adjustments

Cap reciept - Contingency for non receipt (500)

RTB addn receipts (73)

Bridge Buildings (125)

Cleave wood (18)

Brunswick Wharf (95)

Capital Programme - Updated 22/23 25,986 (28,541) (2,555)

Page 62



Appendix 2 – Capital Programme 2022/23 to Capital Programme 2023/24 
 

 
Capital Programme – Movements in year 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2 Capital Programme Update 2023-24

Capital 

Programme
Funding

(Surplus)/ 

Shortfall

£'000s £'000s £'000s

Capital Programme - Updated 22/23 - Bfwd 25,986 (28,541) (2,555)

Update To Environmental Centre

Approved by Full Council 20th December 2022

Reduction in Project Cost (to £7.2m) (508)

Use of Future Capital Receipts (Cleavewood/Hatchmoor/etc) (1,460)

Use of PIDs released (820)

Reduction in PWLB borrowing (£5.6m to £2.8m) 2,788

24,658 (27,213) (2,555)

Update for Homelessness (C&R Approved)

Hubbastone Conversion 146 (146)

Sully House 968

Sully House (Modular Units) 221 (174)

25,993 (27,533) (1,540)

Extend Capital Programme to 2027/28

Car Parks/ Property / IT Equip 260 (260)

DFG 500 (500)

Vehicle Programme 103 (836)

Capital Programme (2023/24) 26,856 (29,129) (2,273)

Page 63



Appendix 3 – Capital Programme 2023/24 to 2027/28 
 

 
Capital Programme – Detail by Project 

 
 

Capital Programme   Funding 

Project Type 
 2023-
2028 

  

Capital 
Reserves 

Capital 
Receipts 

Grants 
PWLB 

Borrowing 

Car Park Refurbishment Program Car Parks 905    905  -  -  -  

Leisure Contingency Culture/Sport 350    350  -  -  -  

Depot provision Depot 7,154    2,932  1,460  -  2,762  

Disabled Facilities Grant DFG 3,255    -  -  3,255  -  

Linear Defence - Westward Ho! Environmental 60    60  -  -  -  

Torridge Cemetery Extension Environmental 157    157  -  -  -  

Affordable Housing Housing 207    207  -  -  -  

Decent Homes Funding Housing 127    127  -  -  -  

Gypsy & Traveller Site Provision Housing 100    100  -  -  -  

Barton House Hostel Re-modelling Housing 77    77  -  -  -  

Homelessness Accom - Hubbastone Housing 372    372  -  -  -  

Homelessness Accom - Sully House Housing 968    -  -  -  968  

Homelessness Accom - Modular Sully Hse Housing 221    15  -  174  32  

Capital Improvement Program Infrastructure 621    621  -  -  -  

Victoria Park Paths & Services Infrastructure 110    110  -  -  -  

Play Area Program Infrastructure 130    130  -  -  -  

Town Hall Library Roof Infrastructure 880    880  -  -  -  

Riverbank house Phase 2 Infrastructure 131    131  -  -  -  

Muslim Burials Infrastructure 44    44  -  -  -  

Skate Park Acoustics Infrastructure 66    66  -  -  -  

Harbour (Shipping works) Infrastructure 77    77  -  -  -  

Westward Ho WC Drains Infrastructure 39    39  -  -  -  

Caddsdown Disabled Access Pathways Infrastructure 46    46  -  -  -  

Grounds Maintenance Equipment Infrastructure 168    168  -  -  -  

Sandymere Road Infrastructure 46    46  -  -  -  

IT Replacement IT 351    351  -  -  -  

IT (Desktop Strategy) IT 121    121  -  -  -  

Core Server IT 95    95  -  -  -  

Holsworthy Agri Business Regeneration 2,100    -  600  1,500  -  

Caddsdown Phase 3 Land & Servicing Regeneration 2,000    -  1,000  1,000  -  

Strategic Property Reserve Strategic 710    710  -  -  -  

Vehicle Replacement Program V&P 5,168    4,668  500  -  -  

    26,856    13,605  3,560  5,929  3,762  

 
 
 
 

Page 64


	Agenda
	6 S106 Monitoring Fees
	6a - Appendix 1
	6b - Appendix 2

	7 Fees and Charges
	7a - Fees and Charges 2023-24 Draft for Approval

	9 Budget 2023 - 24, Medium Term Financial Strategy 2023/24 - 2027/28
	10 Capital Programme 2023/24 to 2027/28
	Appendix 1  -- Capital Programme Bfwd
	Appendix 2  -- Capital Programme Movements
	Appendix 3  -- Capital Programme by Project




